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The following suppiementary information does not form part of the Annual Finanelal Statements and is
unaudited:

Lagal Entity farminology used in thie report

Company: South African Securftisetion Programme {RF) Limiled Group: Sasfin Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries

Controling company: Sasfin Bank Limited

Group: Sasfin Holdings Limited and iis subsidiaries




Sauth African Securitisation Programmae (RF) Limited
{Registration number: 1191/002706/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

The Board of Direclors (the Board) of South African Securitisation Programme {(RF) Umiled (the Company) is
responsitie forthe preparation and fair presentallon of tha Direstors’ Report and the Antusl Financial Statements
of the Company including significant accounting policles and clher explanatory ncies.

The Annual Financlal Statements ase prepared in accordance with Intarnationsl Finenclat Repading Standards
(IFRS) as bssued by ihe Intercalional Accounting Standards Board UASH), the South Afficean insitute of
Chartered Accountants {SAICA) Finangial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee,
Financial Reporiing Pronouncements as fssued by the Finencial Reparting Standanls Councit and the
requirements of fiw Companies Act, 7 of 2008, as smended (Companies Act).

The Board ks also respansidle far such ntemal controls ag thay deem recessaty 1o erabla the preparation of
maammll Financial Statemenis and for maintelning adequate accounting recards andl en effective systers of
management.

The Company has bean established as & struchured entity for Sasfln Bank Limited and is deemad %o be controlisd
by Sasfin Bank Limited in accordance with IFRS8. Consequently, the day-to-day mansgement and oversight of
SASE ste 1he responsibiily of Sasfia Bank Limited. The Board {harefore place reance on the management and
govemance by the Sasfin Group in the axacution of ils duties and gbligations towards SASP,

Rased o1 its ownmonittring and oversighl 85 well as aseurance obisined from management, the Boand s of the
vigw tha! an effective internal financial controt envirorment exists to support the Integeity of the Annuat Financlal
Staternents.

The Board has areasonabile expeciation that the Company will have adequete resounces 10 confiave in
cperational sxistencs and o8 & goinyg concem in the financlal year ahead

it la the responaibiity of the independant ewdior to repoet on the fair prasentation of the Annual Financial
Stalsmenis.

The Armusl Financlal Stslements were approved by the Board and are signed on its behalf by:

\ WAQA LA,

¥

DP Towars
Direttor
17 Seplember 2019 17 Seplember 2010
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Com Secretary's Certification

We hareby cerlify, in tarms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act, that South African Securitisation Programme
{RF) Limited has flled all returns and notices required by the Companles Act with the Compenies and Intellectuz)
Propatty Commiseion, for the financial year ended 30 Juns 2018, and that all such retumns notices as are required
of a public company are tris, comect and up to date.

(e

Maitiand Group South Africa Lid
17 Ssplember 2019
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Directors Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting thelr report on the Annual Financlal Statements of South African
Securiiisation Programme {RF) Lirited (the Company) for the year ended 30 Juna 2019,

1. Nature of Business

The company Is & securitisation structured entity created solely to acquira equipment finance agreements from
the Sasfin Holdings Limited Group of Campanies.

2. Financlal resuits

The Annual Financial Sigtements have been prepered in accordance with Internafional Financial Reporting

Sianderds and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. Full detalls of the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of the Campany are set out in these Annual Financial Statements.

3 Directorate and Changes to the Board

The directars of the Company are: Changes:

D Govender Not-executive Appointed 21 February 2019
DP Towers Nor-executive Appointed 01 Navember 2011
E Deiner Non-gxacutive Appointed 25 April 2017

B Harmse Non-executive Appointed 31 January 2013
RDEB Sassoon (British) Non-executive Resignad 31 Decembar 2016

4, Company Secratary

Maitland Group South Africa Limited was appointed as Company Secretary on 1 October 2011,

Postal address PO Box 781396
Sandton
Johanneshurg
2146

Businsss address 18 Fricker Road
iovo
Johannesburg
21968
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5 Shara Capital

Ordinary Share Capltal:
There have bean no changes to the authorised or issued ordinary share capital during the year under review.

Preference Share Capital;
Thera have been no changes to the authorissd or lssued preference share capital during the vear under review.

6. Ultimate Holding Entity

The cormpany is wholly owned by The South African Securitisation Issuer Owner Trust, a trust set up solely for
the purposes of holding the ordinary shares of tha company. The trustee of the trust is Maitland Group South
Africa Limited,

The company is controlled, administered and managexi by Sasfin Bank Limited in accordance with IFRS.

7. Dlvidends

The company deciared, and psid preference share dividends of R45 milion (2018: R26 milion) during the current
financlal year.

8. Events at the reporting data
The Company re-financed R384 milllion of nates in Series 1 and R324 milien of notes in Serds 3 In August 20189,

9. Divector's Emoluments

Three directors of the Board of the directors of the Company are employed by Independent extemal service
providers and are remunerated by their respectiva employens on a separate basis. The temaiting director is
employed and remunerated by Sasfin Benk Limiied. There was no remuneration or benefit paid directly to the
directors or by any company within the group, for services provided in thelr capacity as directors of the company,
ofher than as disclosed in note 20.

14, Special Reaolutions
Special resolutions passed during the year are avallable for inspaction,

1. Corporate Governance

The principles of the King Coda on Comporate Governance {King I\/) as applied to all companles in the Sasfin
Group, are equelly applied in the governance of the Company, An explanation of how the King IV principles ars
applied in the Group can be found on the Sasfin website, www.sasfin.com/investor-relations/#results-and-
reporis.
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Audit Commitiee

1, Members of the Audit Committee

The members of the audit committes are all independant. nan-executive directors of the company and are:

Members Experfience

B Harmge (Cheirmnan} Appointed: 17 April 2013
E Deiner Appainted: 25 Aprll 2017
DP Towers Appointed: 17 April 2013

The committee s satisfied that the membears thereof have the required knowledge snd experience as set out in
Section 94(5) of tha Companies Act 71 of 2008, Regulafion 42 of the Companles Regulalions, 2011 and
principle 8.55 of King IV.

2 Meetings hald by the Audit Committee

The audit commities performs the dulies laid upon it by Saction 84(7) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 by
holding meetings with the key role players on a regular basis and by the unrestricted access grantad to the
external auditor,

For the period undar review, tha Committee met iwice on 12 Oclober 2018 and 14 May 2019.

& Specific Functions of the Committes
Flnancial Reporting

s Have regand to all factors and risks that may impact on the integrity of the annual financial statements,
including factors that may predispose the Sarvicer and Administrator to present a misleading picture,
significant. judgements and reporting declsions made, monfloting or enforcament actions by a regulatory
bady, any avidence that brings inta quastion previously published infarmation, forward-looking staternents
or information;

+ Review the ennual financlal siatements, interim reports, pmliminary or provisional result arnouncements,
summarised integrated Information, any trading statements and similar documents;

« Comment on the annual financial statements, the accounting praclices and the effectiveness of the
internal financial condrols;

+ Recommend to the Board the engagemant of an external assurance provider as may bs provided forin
the Transaction Documents; being the Memorandum of Incorporation of the company, the trust deed of
the legal owner and all contracts, agreements, addendums fo contracts and agresments and other
memorandums governing the rdghis and obligations of the campany and #s counter parties); and

»  Recommand the annual financial stataments for approval by the Beard.
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Externai Audit

The Committes is responsihle fof recommending the appolniment of the extemal auditor and to overses the
external audit process and in this regard the Committee must after consultation with the Servicer and
Administratot:

Naminats the external auditor for appointment by the sharehokisrs;
Approve the fermns of engapement and remuneralion forthe external awdit engagement;
Manitor and report on the independence of the external auditor in the annual financial statements;
Dafine a policy for non-audit servicas provided by the external auditor in the annusl financial statements;
Pre-approve the contracts for non-audit senvces to be rendersd by the sxtemal auditor;
Ensure that there is a process for the Audit Committee fo be informed of any Reportable Iregularities
(as identified in the Auditing Profession Act, 2005) identified and reported by tha external auditor in
respact of the company;
Review the quality and effactiveness of the axtemal audit process; and
Consider whether the audit firm and, where appropriate, the individual auditor that will be responsible for
performing the funcions of audiior, are accredited as such on the JSE list of Auditors and thelr advisors as
recuired by the JSE Limited Listings Requiramants.
»  Recommendad for re-slection PricewaterhouseCoopears Inc (PwC) as the eudit fimn, with Vincent
Tshikhovhokhovho as the engagement pariner, for sharcholder approvel.
= The Commilee is satisfiad that PwC is independant of the Group, ang the partner who is responsible for
signing the company’s Annual Financial Statements, as set aut in saction 94(B) of the Companies Acl, has
the requisite skills and experfisa, This included consideration of:

o The reprasentations by PwC to the Committes including the auditor's sultability aseessment in

terms of the JSE Listing Redquirements.
o The independence of FWC not being impaired as set out by IRBA as wall a3 other regulatory and
intemal processes within the audit firm.
o Policlas and controls regarding non-assiwance services provided by PwC.

Tha campany's extemal audiior Is PwG Inc. Feas paid for audit and other services are approved by tha
Cammitiee.

Interriad Audit

The Gommittee may F deamed negsessary nteraot with the Infermal audit function of the Servicer and
Administrator in as far as same relates to and may impact the company In respact of:

Financlal reporting tisks;

Internat financial controls;

Fraud risks s it relates to financial reporting; and
IT risks as it relates to financial raporiing.

For claiity, the internal audit function does not report to the Committes, but forms part of the Servicar and
Administrator's responsibliitias In terms of their relevant appointments and related agresments.

Combined Assurance

The Committes will, f appliceble, ensure that a combined assurance model is applied to provide a coordinated
approach to af assurance activities, and In particular the Commitiee should:

s Ensure that the combined assurance received is appropriate to address all the significant risks facing

the company; and
+  Monitor the relationship between the externel assurance providers and the company.

4, Financlal Risk Management

The company’s financial risk management is govered by the financial risk management framewark, policies and
procedures impismented and maintz2ined by the Sasfln Group.
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5. Annual Confirmations of Key Functions for the year

Financial control and financial reporting

The Commities reviews the Annual Financial Statemants, dividend declarations and recommends those to the
Board for approval. This role insludes &n assessment of the accounting poficies and key assumpfions applied in
the preparation of the financial statements, as well as dealing in technicsl reparting matiers. In doing so, the
Committee also confirmed complianca of the Annual Financlal Statements with IFRS ang the JSE Debt Listings
Requirements. Further, canslideration has bean glven to the 2017 JSE Proactive Moniioring report to ensure the
integrity of the financial information in the Annual Financial Statements, Lastly tha Committee confirms that it has
assessed and confirms the gppropriatensss of the going concern basls for the preparation of the Annua
Financial Statements and the solvency and liquidity tests in suppart of financia! assistance end distributions.

The external aulit

During the prior year we put the External Audit out on tsnder and appolnted PwGC as our new auditor. The
Committee went through a rigorous decision-making prooass to enstre that audit quality and auditor
independence were achiaved In this appointmsnt. The Committee has obtained the necessary assurance from
the auditors that thalr independence was not impaired. Wa aleo heve a strict non-audit services policy in place to
guard against any threats to auditor independence.

Wa are salisfied with our decision and camfortably recommend PwC as audit firm, with Vincent
Tshikhevhokhovho as engagement pariner, forshareholder approval.

6. The Audit Committee can confirm that:

Resources have been utilised efficiently; and

The Internal controls have been effectivein all material aspects throughout the year under review;
Proper accounting retords have been maintained;

Controls have ensured that the company's assets are sefeguarded;

The skills, independence, audit plan, reporting and overall performancs of the external auditor are
acceptable, and it recommends their next appoiniment in 2020,

" 2 g P w

7 Anmnual Financlal Statements

The commiitiee has:

+« Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements with the external auditor and
Directors;

»  Reviewad the external auditer's managemant letter and manapement's respanse thereto; and

» Reviewed significant adjustments resulling from external audit queries and any unadjusted audit
differances (where applicable).

The audit committee s satisfisd with the work perfoarmed by the Chief Financtal Officer and Financial Director of
Sasfin Bank Limited, with which the day-to-day management and oversight of SASP resides,

COn behalf of the audit

\,j\
Audit Committee Chalrman
17 September 2018
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independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of South African Securitisation Programme (RF) Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qur opinion

In our opinlon, the financial statements present falrly, in all material respects, the financial position of
South African Securitisation Programme (RF} Limited {the Company) as at 30 June 2019 and Its
financlai performanca and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intemational
Financlat Reporting Standards and the reguirements of the Companies Act of South Africa

What we have audited
South African Securitisation Programme (RF) Limited's financlal statements sat out on pages 12 to 62
comprise;

the statement of financlal position as at 30 June 2019;

the statement of comprehensive Incoms for the year then ended;
the statement of changes In equity for the year then ended:

the atatement of cash fows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financlal statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies,

@ & = ® &

Basis for opinion

W conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Qur

responsibiilies under those standards are further described in the Audifor's responsibiiities for the

audit of the financial statemants section of our report.

ge belleve thet tha audit evidence we have obteined Is sufficiont and appropriate to provide a basis
r our opinion,

independence

We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the sections 280 and 281 of the Independent
Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registerod Awditors (Revised
January 2018), paris 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulalory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional
Conduct for Reglistersd Auditors {(Ravised Novamber 2018) (togathar the IRBA Codes) and othar
independence requirements applicable o performing audits of financlal statements in South Africa. We
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibllities, as applicable, in accordance with the IRBA Codes and
in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits kn South Africa. The
IRBA Codes are consistant with the corresponding sections of the (nternational Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Codle of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the Iniernational Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Intemational Code of Ethics for Frofessional Accountents (inciuding
international Independence Standards) respectively.

PricewaterhouseCoapers Inc., 4 Lishon Lane, Warerfill City, Juksket View, 2ogo
Private Bag X36, Sunninghill, 2157, South Africa
T: 27 (0} 12 797 4000, F: +27 (0) 1t 209 5800, wunw,pwe.co3a

Chvief Execultv Clficot; L 8 Macheom

The Company's princlpal place of business is ai 4 Lisborn: Lene, Walarfal CHy, Julie! View, whiim 1 1ist of directors’ nats It svaliakle for Inspeciion, 10
fag ne. 190801206541, VAT regno, 4960174662,
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Our audit approach

Qverview

Overall materiality
Meserialiy e R6 million, which represents 1% of income, which is the
aggregale of interest and similar incoms, fee and
commission income, gains on financial instruments and

other income.
Beoping
Key audit matters
Key it » Expected credit losses on loans end advances

s Migration of IT systems impacting financial reporting

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and asssssed the risks of material
misstatement In the financial stetements. In particular, we considered where the directors made
subjective judgements; for example, In respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertaing As in afi of our audits,
wea also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other
mattars, consideration of whether there was evidenca of bias that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud,

Materiallty

The scope of our sudit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed te obtain
raasonable assurance whather the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Misstalements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influsnce the economic decislons of users taken on
the basls of the financial statements,

Baged on our professional judgement, we determined cartain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
Including the overall matertslity for the financial statements as a whole as set out In the table below.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of atir audit propedures and to evafuate the effact of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financlat statements as a whole.

Overall materiaiity R 8 million -
How we datermined it | 1% of Incoma, which is the aggregafe of inlerest and similar income, fee
and commission Income, gaing on financial instruments and other

income.
L'i'?.sll‘fonewa for the Wa chose income as the benchmerk, becausa, fn our view, it fs the most
matariality benchmark | suitable benchmark for tha Company, due lo the fact that the Company
applied has a history of volatile profit hefore tax numbers and has a higher cost o

income ratio in comparison lo other profit-oriented busingsses.
Furthermore, Income has remained consistent for the past three years.
We chose 1% which Is consistent with quantitative malerialily thresholds
used when using Income as the benchmark,

11




Key audit malters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of rmost significance in
our audit of the financigl statements of the currant perlod. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming olir opinlon thareon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers.

ey audlt mattor

How the matter was addrezsed In the audit

1. Expected credit losses on loans and advances

At 30 June 2018, gross loans and advances
smounied to R3, 2 bliion against which an
expacted credit toss (ECL) of R170 milflon
was recoghised.

Refar to the following accounting nolicies and
notes to the financial stalements for details;

» Note 1.6 A (Flnancial instruments -
Polloy under IFRS 8);

» Nota 2.2 (Criltical esfimates and
Judgements - Credlt impairment of
loans and advances);

¢ Note 7 {Loans and advances); and

o Note 23 (Cradi risk} lncluding Note
23.3 {Credit loss allowance analysis).

The ECL was calculated by managasment by
applying IFRS 9, Financiaf Instruments (IFRS
8) which was adopted for the first time on

1 July 2018,

in caleulating the ECL, the key areas of

slignificant management judgement
and estimation included the following:

a  Determining whether evidence exists
that there has been a significant
incresse in credit risk (SICR) elnce
initial recognition of the financial
instritment, by considering shifts in
calculated behavioral and granting
seores, beyond determined
threshalds;

e Datermination of the write-off point.
The Company conskiars the point at

Our audit procedures sddressed the key areas
of significant judgement and estimation in
determining the ECL on loans and advances as
follows:

Evaluation of SICR
With the assistance aof our valuation experts we
performed the following procedures:

s Calculated the impact of SICR, and
testad the assumptions and date
applied by management In thelr ECL
calculation model; and

« Testad the performance of SICR
threshalds applied and the resultant
transfer rate into stage 2 for SIGR. This
included benchmarking of the volume
of up to date accounts transfarred to
stage 2 based on history.

No material exceptions were noted.

Datermination of write-off point
= For the lending portfolio, we evaluated
managemant's assessment of
historical post write-off recoveties, to
determine the polnt at which there was
no reasonable expectation of further
recovery and whether It Is in
compliance with iIFRS 8; and
¢ We tasted the application of the IFRS
9 write-off principles, including the
excluslon of past write-off racovarles
from the Loss Given Default (LGD) as
determined by management.
We found no exceptions in the determination of
the write off point which is in line with the

12
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which there Is no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financlal
asset in iis entiraty or a portion
thereof, This is generaliy the cass
when the Company determines that
there is no realistic prospect of
recovering the monies owed;

» Determining and weighting of
assumptions used in the forward-
looking ecoromic model. Four
forward-looking scenarloe are
probabllity-welghted by management
o determine the ECL {up-case,
expected case, light down and severe
down scenarios). The Company
validated strategies and utilised the
outlook to project fiture changes in
the repo rate. These scenarics are
then linked to Probabliities of Default
{PDs} and Loss Given Defauits
(L.GDs) to derive a forward jooking
ECL;

e Datermining event driven
managemeant ECL overlays.
Managernent adjusts the results
preducad by the modalled output for
events that influence the modelled
output, and which are not yet
captured by the modal; and

= Callbrating of the ECL statistical
model componerts (PD, Exposure at
Default "EAD", and LGD) used to
eslimate the timing and amount of the
forecasted cash flows based on
historical default data, roll rates and
recoveries. The Company stratifies
aspects such as client risk
Company's, time on book, product
term, default statuses, industry and
rescheduling status. Management
judgement s required fo consider how
historics! data is used o project ECL.

1 We determined the ECL on ioans and

advances to be a matter of most slgnificance

to our current year audit due fo the following:
« thefirst-time adopiion of IFRS 8 by

principles of IFRS 8,

Inclusion of forward-looking information and
macro-sconomic variables In the ECL
+ With the assistance of our valuation
expettise we considerad and assessed
the assumptions used In the forward-
looking economic model, apecifically
around the forward-laoking scenarios
used, the macro-aconomic variable
consldered as well ag the macro-
econumic outtook. We compared these
to our Independently obtalned actuarial
statistics and market data; and
s We tested the performance and

sensitivity of the forward-looking model
in order to evaluate whether the
chosen macro-economic factors and
model provide a reasonable
representation of the impact of macro-
aconomic changes on the ECL resuits.

No excepflons were noted.

Assegsment of ECL raised for individusi
gXposUres

» Where ECL has been raised for
individual exposures, we cansidered
the impalrment Indicators,
uncertainties and assumptions made
by management in their assessment of
the recoverabllity of the expasura, For
a sample of stage 3 expostres, we
independently recaloulated the
impairment losses based on our
assessment of the expected cash
flows and recoverability of collatera! at
an individual exposure levei;

» Forcollateral held, we inspacted legal
agreements and supporting
documentation to confirm the
existence and legal right to collateral;
and

» The collateral valuation techniques
appilad by management were
evaluated agalnst the Company's
valuation guidelines, No material
exceplions were hoted.

13




the Company,

« the magnitude of the ECL.; and

o the dagree of judgement and
estimation applied by management in
detarmining the ECL.

Calibrating of ECL statistical model
componenis {FD, EAD, LGD)

* We ohtained an understanding of the
methodalogies and assumptions used
by management in the varjous ECGL
model components and how these
were calibrated fo use historical
infarmation to eslimate future cash
flows; and

+  We re-performed the ECL calculation.

Managemeant's results from the ECL model
weara found to ba within the range of cur
independently calculated ECL.

2. Migration of (T systems impacting financlal reporting

During the current financlal year, three core
banking IT systems were migrated into ong
system. Furthermaore, an additlonal core
banking system went live at a similar ime.
The migration was as a result of the
Company's strategic decision to sireamline
tha businass processes. The migration
significantly impacted the current audit
because i took place during the last three
montha of the financial year.

We delermined that tha migration of IT
systamns impacting financial reportingtobe a
matter of most significance to our clirrent year
audit due to the fact that it resulted Ina
significant increase of audit effort 1o
understend and evaluate the approprigteness
of management controls over these system
imptementations and data migration activitles.

Wa obtalned and sssessed the Company's T
Steering Committee policy and inspacted
whether the governance approvals were
adhered fa prior to the syelems migration.

We obtained an understanding and tested the
design and implementation of the relevant
management controls relating to the data
migration and conversion to a new system.

We evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over the key
applications, opersting systems and databases
that wera migrated and their related impact on
financial reporiing.

We performed additionat substantive
nrocedures fo test the completeness and
acouracy of the data feeds post-migration into
the general ledger. These included, among
other proceduras, agresing a sample of the
financlal data iterns, lina by fine and column by
caolumn bo ensure that the information was
comrectly mapped from legacy aystems to the
new system bsing implemented.

Additiona] substantive testing was parformed
on spedific year-end recongiliations (i.2,
custodian statement and bank statements
reconclled to the genheral ledger). No material
exceptions wsre noted.
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Other infarmation

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other informatlon comprises the
information included In the document titled *South African Secusitisation Programme (RF) Limited
Annua] Financial Statements for the year endad 30 June 2019" which includss Directors' Raport, the
Audit Committee Repart and the Company Secretary's Certification as raquired by the Companies Act
of South Africa. The other information does not include the financlal statements and our auditor's
repoit thereon.

Qur epinlon on the financlal statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion therson.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respansibllity is to read the other
information identified above and, in dolng so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtalned in the audit, or othewise appoars
to be materfaliy misstated,

if, hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that thers is a material misstaterent of this
other infarmation, we are requived to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Respensibifities of the direclors for the financlaf statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
sccordance with Interational Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companias
Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
praparation of financial statements that are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

In praparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's abliity
fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to golng concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either Intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's tesponsibiiities for the audit of the financial stalements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance shout whether the financlal statements as a whole
are free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar ervor, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance Is a high lavel of assurance but is not a guarantea that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always delect & material miestatement when It exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materlal if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic declsions of users taken on
the basls of these finenclal statements.

As part of an audil in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional jJudgement and maintain
professional skepliclsm throughout the audit. We aiso:

s [(dentlfy and assess the risis of material misstatament of the financlal statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basls for our apinion. The risk of not

15




pwe

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve colusion, forgery, intentional omisaions, misrepresetitations, or the override
of Intemhal control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the clrcumstances, but not far the purposa of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internat control.

¢ Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting poficles used and the reasonableness of accounting
sstimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the diractors’ use of the going concern hasls of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obiained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to evenis
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability fo continue as a going
concem. |f we conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the retated disclosures in the financlal statements or, If such disclosures are
Inadequate, to madify our opinion. Qur conchisions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Comnpany
to ceass fo confinue &s a going concem.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including
disclosures, and whaether the financial staternents represent the underlying transactions and
eveants in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the ditectors regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including eny significant deficiencies in Internal control that we
idendify during cur audit.

We also pravida the diraciors with a statemant that we have complied with relevant ethlcal
requiremenis regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independance, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From ihe matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matiers that were of most
significanca in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefors the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation preciudes
pubtic disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so
would reasohably ba expacted to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Repori on olher legal and reguiatory reguirements

in terms of the {RBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39476 dated 4 December 2015,
we repori that PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc, has been the auditor of Sauth African Securitiaation
Programme {RF) Limilted for 2 years.

Py p ) o  wmie s seman mmeh s R e | s oMk o amy e CRA L ga s EM g ek sl —gePTE aa e e i A E A

Ev\'z‘mﬂﬁ-«ﬁ»em o
ricewaterhouseCoopars¥inc.

Director: Vincent Tshikhovhokhovho
Reglstered Auditor

4 Uisbon Lane

Waterfall City

2019

19 September 2019
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South African Securitisation Programme (RF) Limited
(Registration number: 1191/002706/06}
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 30 JUNE 2019 20181

Ascounting

Policy Note R'000

ASSETS
Cash and cash balances 1.5 4 469 658
Trading assets 1.6 B 18 268
Cther recelvables 18 8 55 439
Current taxation agset 18 -
Loans and advances 1.8 7 3385762
TOTAL ASSETS 3 508 117
LIABILITIES
Trading lisbififles 1.6 5 -
Currant taxation lability 8738
Trade and other payables 8 132 362
Debt securities {ssued 1.8 9 3 115432
Long-term loanhs 1.6 10 & 500
Loans from entities in the group 202 372 498
Deferred tax fiabilily 1.8 11 - 76 520
TOTAL LIABILITIES 09 3711080
EQUITY
Ordinary share capital 14 12 100
Resarves 187 866
Total sgulty 187 680
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3 909 030

1-Comparative information has not been restaled for the adoplion of IFRS 9. Therefora, comparebiily may not
necessaniy be achisved,
Refar o nofe 1.1.1.
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South African Securitisation Programme {RF) Limited
(Reglstration number: 1191/002706/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 2018t
"“‘f,‘;‘l‘lg;‘“ﬂ Note R'000

Interest and similar income 1.7 14 478 184

Interest income calculated using the effective

interest method 471 700

QOther interest income 6 484
interest and similar expense 15 300 601

interest expense calculated using the sffective

interest mathod 1.7 300 601
NET INTEREST INCOME 177 583
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE {33 084)
Fee and commission incoms 16.1 4 318
Fes and cornmission expense 18.1 {155 067)
Gains and loszes on financial instruments 1.7 (484)
Other Income 16.2 118 142
TOTALINCOME 144 492

_Impaiment charges on ioans and advances 18&221 20 408

NET INGOME AFTER IMPAIRMENTS 124 086
OPERATING COSTS {6 316)
Secretarial Costs 17.1 {214)
Other operaling expensss 17.2 {8 101)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 118774
Income tax expense 1.8 18 33 208
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 85 583
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO: B 588
Ordinary Shareholders 59 598
Praference shareholders 26 000

7-Comparalive informstion has not been roséeted for the adaopiion of IFRS 9. Therefore, comparabilify may not

nacessarily be achisved.
Rafor 1o nofe 1.1.1,
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South African Securitisation Programemne {RF) Limited
[Registration mimber: 11917002708 /06)
Annual Finenclal Statements fot the yewr anded 38 June 2019

STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2819

Ordinary Preforsoe
sharo capital  Distributable share capital
and premlum EmeTYES and praminT

8000 R'Go0 RG00
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2017 100 138 282 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR - 58 658 -
Prefit fox the yaar - 86 588 24000 |5
TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS RECORDED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY
Dividands la preference shareholders - {28 000) {26 000)
BALANGE AT 30.JUNE 2018 108 167 860 -
Chengss an infile) applicallon of IFRS 9 (neferin nome 1.1.1) - (2 -
RESTATED BALANCE AT 1 JULY 20181 100 195 478 .
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE YEAR - {4 058) .
Profft for the year - 40 042 45 00D
TRANBACTIONS WITH OWNERS RECORDED DIRECTLY {N EQUITY
Midetids E ] - {46 {45 450}
__BALANGE AT 30 JUNE 2018 100 160 484 .
1-cmr:nm\ra1¥?mam hax sof besn restaled Ror tha sdoplion of FRS 8. Tharehwe, comparabilly may not heceeearly be achieved.
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South African Securltisation Pragramme (RF) Limited
(Registration humber: 1191/002706/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2049

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Nate

Cash receipls from customers 191

Cash paid to customaers, employees and suppliers 182

CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 19.3

Taxation pald 104 3615
Dividends paid 18,6 (26 000)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE CHANGES IN

OPERATING ASSETS ANDLIABILITIES 115 703
CHANGES IN OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 32 682
(Increess)/Dacrease in loans and advances {676 999)
{Increase)Decrease in trading assets {8 505)
{Decrease)/increase in other receivables 42
Increasef{Dacrease) in long-term funding 47 720

Increase KADecrease) in funding under repurchass agreements and interbank
Increase/(Decrease) in trading liabilities

Increase/(Dacrease) In daebt securities

{Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payablss

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTMITIES

Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents AT THE END OF THEYEAR
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South African Securltisation Programme (RF) Limtied
{Reglstration number; 1191/002706/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30June 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Annual Financial Staternents are set out
below.

14 Basls of Preparation

The Annuiel Financial Statemenis have bean prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting
Stendards (IFRS) as issued by the international Accounting Standands Board (IASE) and IFRS Interpretation
Committee, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Comimittes, Financlal
Pronouncements as issuad by the Financial Reporiing Standards Counci, the requirements of the Companies
Agct, 71 of 2008, #s amended, and the JEE Debt Listings Requirements,

The directors assass the Group and Company’s future parfermance and financlal position on a continuous basis
and heve no reasan to belleve that the Group and Company will not be a going concem in the reporting pariod
ahead, Consaquantly the Consolidated end Separats Annuel Financizl Statements have bean preparsd on the
gaing concern basis

The Company has, in the preparstion of the Annual Financlal Statements, consistently applied the accounting
policies with those applied in the previous financlal year, unless ctherwise stated.

1.1.1  Adoption of new and amended standards for the firet time In the current financlal year

Tha following standards, interpretations and amendiants have heen adopled without sffecting the Company’s
previously reported finencial results, disclosures of accounting policies and did not impact the Gompany's results
upen transition:

+ IFRS 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers (IFRS 158) — IFRS 15 replaces IAS 11 Construction
Contrects, 1AS 18 Revenus, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyslty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agresments for the
Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assefs from Customers and SIC-31 Revenus — Bartey
of Transactions Involving Adveriising Services, This standard contains a single model that applies to all
contracts with customers and wo approaches to recognising revenue namely ata polnt in time or over
time. {FRS 13 detalls a contract-based five-step analysis of fransactions to determine whether, how
much and when revenue Is recognised. The adeption of IFRS 15 forthe year commencing 1 July 2018
did not have a significant impact, since the standard does not impact the fiming or amount of fee and
commission income from contracts with customers and the related assets and fablities recognieed by
the Company. Accordingly, the impact on the comparative information is limited to new disclosure
requiramerits.

s {FRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations {(IFRIC 22) — When foreign
ourrency consideration is pald or repelved in advance of the llem it relates to—which may be an asset,
an expense or income ~ IAS 21 The Effects of Changes ih Foreigh Exchange Rates is not clear on how
to determine the transaction date for transiating the relaled #em. This has resutted in diversity in practice
regarding the exchange rete used to translate the related kem. [FRIC 22 dlarifias that the transaction
date is the date on which the company inlially recopnises the prepayment or daferred income arising
from the edvance consideration. For transactiona involving multiple payments or racasipts, each payment
or teceipt gives 1ise 1o a separate transaction date. The Company adopied IFRIC 22 forthe year
commencing 1 July 2048, The adoption did not hava a significant impact on the Company.

The adaption of IFRS § Financial Instruments (IFRS ) had a matertal impact on the Company’s results upon

trensition. IFRS 8 replaces I1AS 38 Financisl instruments: Recognifion and Messurement {(IAS 38) and ie appliad
for tha firet time by the Company forthe ysar commencing 1 July 218,
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South African Securitisation Prograrme (RF) Limited

(Registration number: 1191/002706/06)

Annuzl Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

The following Is a summary of the main differences between IFRS 9 and |1AS 39;

Changas to the classification and measurement of financial sssets. The clessification and measuremeant

of financlal assets are determined by the business model applied by the Company in managing ite

financial ssgets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets;

Mcving from &n incurred loss Impairment model under 1AS 39, to an expescted credit loss (ECL)

impairment modal uhder IFRS 9, and

Changes in the hedge accounting reguirements and the application thereof
Refer "IFRS 9 adoption” for mare detail

IFRS 8 adoption

‘The Gompany has siscted o adopt IFRS ¢ retrospectively without restating comparatives L.e. restating apening
retained income on 1 July 2018, the effectiva dafe. Cansequently, the comparative information {as previously
reported for the year ended 30 June 2018) are presented in accordance with the requirements of IAS 88, with
current and future reporting periods presented in terma of IFRS 9,

Classification and Measurémaent

As indicated in the below table, the changes to the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financlal Habiities did not heve a significant impact on the Company, apart from the increase in the credit loss
allowance related to Loans and Advances and the ralated deferred tax impact.

IFRS 9 Transition adjustment on 1 July 2018

iAS 38 Clasgsification Total IFRS 8 FRS 2
1AS 38 IFR& 8 30 June ECL and Adjustment 1 July
Classiflcation Classification 2018 RG00 | Measurement R'000 2018
M R'000 R'000 R'000
ASSETS
Loans Amorlised Amortised
and coat cost 3 365 762 {3408) |3 362 354
advances
TOTAL -
ASSETS 3 365 782 (3408) {3 362 364
IFRS 9 Transitlon adjustment on 1 July 2018
1AS 39 Classffication IFRS 9
IAS 39 IFRS 8 30 June ECL and ‘Aﬁ;ﬁgﬁ’ 1 Jul
Classification | Classlfication 2018 RO0C | Measursment R'000 201
R*000 R'0O00 R'000
LIABIITIES
Detatred Quiside scope | Culside scopa
.tl? s fiabil 76 520 (a54) 75 568
TAL
| LIABILITIES 76 520 - {954) | 75 566
EQUITY
Reserves Outside scope | Outside scope 197 881 (2 454) 195 427
TOTAL
EQUITY 197 881 - (2 464) 195 427
TOTAL
k'#g“—'T'Es 274 401 . (2408) | 270893
EGUITY
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South African Securitisation Programime {(RF) Limited
{Rapistration numher: 1191/002706/06)
Anmsal Financlal Siatements for the yearended 30June 2019

ACCOUNTING POLIGIES continned

(FRS 9 adoption cantinued

Expected credit lous kripalrmnent madal
The Gompany has alectad nat to apply the simpified approach lo s fmance kase recelvahlss,
The giowsnce acoount forcradt inssas (3 delermined wih referance o the following:

¢ Sizge 1: 12-monlh expecied cradl losses Tor thase Mancia) aasels whare thera has not baen & significant increase in credlt risk since inkle! recognition.
o Siane 2 Lifelims expected cradt losses for thons financisl assets whera thera has bean a signilicant Inreass in oredit sk on & colieclive husts.
s Slege 3 Lietime expocted credk losses for all credlt impatred financlal assals.

A signilivant inoreass in credi sk considers tha impael of forward-dooking economic information Bt is readily avallable as well as the aging of the debl. Refarncia 1.8A. It slso considens the
Tmpast of ferwardtooking economle information st Is readily avelabie snd wihiers reluvant,

The change from an incured lose model under (AS 30 to an ECL model under IFRS 9 sssulted In an increase In the impalrmiand loss aliowance account (La, provision farcradk lossas) of
RAACEM, wilh & defemred bax impact of ROH54m on 1 Jdy 2016, The ECL modsl ateo intiudes financiel guarariess iksued, which wae

Provisions. Mznagement has

raasonshin. Refernote 2 for lurther inforrmalion,

proviously recopnised In sccordanne with 1AS 57
applied assumplions, judgaments and asiiniales In teveloping the ECL movdel, basad on historical expesience and ofher factars thal era halleved to be

impalrmant joss allowance for -
Louns and advances under IAS 38 an 30 Jue 2018; o m;‘:m i
Portiolio | Spedial mantion | Subsiandard | Doubthal | Loss | Total | Stagei | Stge?2 | Stigad Total
0] 000 R0 RO00 | ROGD | Ro00 | Roon R0 LY o000 o
“Exuipment Fnance 18 048 1617 ¥ | 3871 (06400 | 125508 | 16 308 T660| B3 48T| J15485 o108
Capital Equisntent Fiaanse 62 (71 " = : b 1] 1047 1 5 L] 5 555 |
Tatal 1602 2502 A58 3071 | 98 480 | 124 35% 20 108 3551 ea 0Bl | 1214897 2 A |
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South African Securitisation Pragramme {RF)} Limited
{Registration number: 1191/002706/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

1.2 Currenclos
121  Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financisl Statemeyita are presented in South African Rand (ZAR) and all amounts, unless otherwiee
indicateq, are stated in thousands of ZAR [R'000).

The Company operates In the Republic of South Africa with & funetional currency of ZAR,

1.3 Leases
131  Company a¢ the lessor

Rental, lease and instaimant sale contracts are finencing fransactions, with rentals and instalments receivable,
{ess unearned finance charges, being reflected as Losns and Advarices in the Statement of Financial Position,

Finance incoms is recognised over the term of the fease using the effactiveinterast method.

14 Share Capital
44.1  Ordinary Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classifled as equily.

incremaental coats directly atiributable {o the Issue of ardinary shares are recognizsed as & deduction from equity,
net of tax,

Dividends are accounted for as distibutions from equity in the perlod in which they are payable to shareholders,

Ordinary share capital of the Compeny purchased by the Company, is recognised as a reduction in equily at the
amount of consideration paid, including direclly attributable costs, net of tax,

142 Preference Share Capital as Equity

Preference share capital is clessified as equity ifit is ron-redeemable, or it Is radeemable anly at the Company's
option or if dividends payabla are disaretionary at the option of the Company.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of preference shares are recognised as a deduction from
aquity, net of tax,

Preference dividends are accounted for as distributions from equity when they become payable to shareholders

15 Cash and Cash Balances
Cash and cash balances as refiected on the Statement of Cash Flows comprise:

1,61 Cash and Cash Balances

Cash and cash balances are avallable foruse by the Gompany unless otherwise stated and are accounted for at
smortised cost in the Annual Financial Statements,
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South African Securitisation Programme [RF) Limited
{Reglstration number: 1151/002706/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 june 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

18 Finaneial {instruments

Since the Company has elected not to restate comparative information with the adoption of IFRS 8, the
accounting policies applicable to both the current and comparative reporting perlods have been included below
for ense of reference,

A, Financlal instruments - Polley under IFRS 9 (cuwrrent and future perlods)

Financial instruments, as reflected on the Statement of Financial Position, include all financial assets, financial
lishifties, derivativa Instrumenis and financial guarentee contracts kesued, excliding invesiments in subsidiaries,
associgted companies and joint ventures.

Financial assets are recognised on the date on which the Company commits to purchase the aseal. Financlal
Liabillties are recognised on the date on which the Company becomes party tothe confractual provisions of the
financial abiity.

Financial Instruments are inkially recognised at falr value.

Transaction costs directly attribuiabla o the acoudsition of a financial asset or financiat liabifity are recognised in
profit or foss for financial instruments measured at falr vatue through profit or loss and for all other financiel
Instruments, against the financial instrument.

Subsequent to intial measurament, financial instruments are elther measured el falr value through profit or oss,
or amortised cost, based on the business modal interms of which the financlal Instruments are acquired and
managed, as well as the confractual cash fiow characteristics thereof.

Classlfication and Measurement of Financial Assets

Financlal essels are classifisd and measured basad on the Company's business model for managing it and the
contractusl cash Aow charasteristics of tha finanolal assets. IFRS 8 eliminated the previous [AS 38 categorles of
held-to-maturity, leans and receivables and available-for-sale.

Financial aseets held by the Company in & business modeal that has the ohjectiva of holding the financial assets
to colisct contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the finencial assel leads to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interast on the principat amount outetanding {SPPI), ane classified and
massured as "measured at emortised cost’.

Financial assets heki by the Company in a business model that has the abjective of reafising cash flows throtgh
the sale of the assats and/or that is managed on a fair value basis, including those held for trading, are classified
and ineasured as "fair value through profit or loss” (FVTPL).

Business model assessment

The Compary makes an assessment of the obiective of a business mode! in which an asset is held at & portfolio
level since this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is providsd to management. The
foliowing information is considered:

« the stated policies and abjectives for the portfolio and the practical Implementation of those policies.
Specifically, whether management’s siratagy focusas on earning contractuel interest revenue, matching
the durstion of the financial assets to the duration of the Rabilities thef are funding those essefs or
reallsing profits and cash flows through the sale of the assets;

«  how the performance of the portfolio ls evaluated end reported to the Company management;

s the rigks that affect the performance of each partfolio and the alratsgy for how thase risks are managed,

» how managers of the business are compensated {a.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assefs managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

+ the fraquency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sates and its
expectations about future seles activity. Information about sales aclivily Is considered as part of the
ovarall assessment of how the Company stated ohjective for managing the financial assets is achieved
and how cash fiows are tealized.
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South African Securitisation Programme {RF} Limited
{Registration number: 1191/002706/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 lune 2019
ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuad
1.6 Financlal iInstruments continued
Classification and Measurement of Financia! Assets continued

Financlel assets that are held for trading (i.e. acquired forthe purpose of saliing in the short term) and those that
the Company has elected to designated as at FVTPL ara measured at FYTPL bacause they are neither hald o
collect contraciual cash flows nor held both to collsat contrastual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Reclassifications

Financial aseets are not reclassified subsequent to their inifial recognition, except in the period after the Company
changes iis business model for managing those financist assets.

Impairment
The Company recognises loss alowances for ECL on the following financia instruments that are not measured at
FVTPL:

financial asseis that are debt instrurnents;
laasae raceivables;

finangial guarantee contracts issued; and
loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss is recognised on squity investments.

.- s 2 @

The Company measures loss aflowances at an emount equal to fifetime ECL, except for the fallowing, forwhich
thoy are measured as 12-month ECL.

¢+  debt investment securifies that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
« other finahclal instruments on which credht risk has not increased significantly since thelr initlal
recopnition {sea nole 23).

For lease recelvables, the Company has electad, in sccordance with the allowed accounting policy chaice in
IFRS 8, 1o apply the general modal for measuring loss alowance, as explained shove,

12-month ECL are the portion of EGL that result from default events on 2 financiad instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments forwhich a 12-month ECL is recognised are
referred to as 'Stage 1 financlal instruments',

Life-ime ECL are the ECL that result from all possibla default events over tha sxpected life of the financial
instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognised but which are not cradit-impaired are
referred to as *Stage 2 financial instruments'. Financlal instruments for which a fifetime ECL is recognised and
which are credit-impairment, are referved to as 'Stage 3 finanolal instiruments’,
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South African Securltisation Programme (RF) Limited
{Registration number: 1191/002706/06}
Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

AGCOUNTING POLICIES continued
1.6 Financial Instruments continued
Classification and Measurament of Financial Assets continued

Moasuremant of ECL
EGL are a probabiiity-weighted estmate of credit lossas, They are measured as follows;

+ financlet assels that are not creditimpaired at the reporfing date: as the present value of all cash
shorifails {Le. the differance batween the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Company expetts to recsive);

« financial assets that are creditimpaired at the reperiing date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated Fulure cash flows; and

» financlal guarantes contracts: the axpected payments 1o reimburse the holder less any amounts that the
Company sxpects to recovar {rsfer to nole 23 — credit risk policy),

The key inputs for the measuremeant of ECL sre the foliowing variables:

Probabiitty of Default (PD);

Loss Given Default (LGD);
Exposure gt Default {EAD} or

Time to Default (TTD)

Expert judgement referred to below.

ECL is a "three stage™ model for calculating impairment josses, based on chenges in credi quality since initial
recognition namely:

s Stage 1 includes Exposures that hava not hed & SICR (Significant Inorease in Credit Loss) sitice initial
recognition. Forthesa financial Instruments, ECL Is caloulated based on the refevant i2-month PD, TTD
and EAD.

+ Siage 2 includes Exposures that had a SICR since tnitial recognifion, but do not have chjective evidence
of impairment, For these financial instruments, ECL Is caloulated based on the relevant ifetime PD, TTD
and EAD.

» Stage 3 includes Exposures for which there are objective evidence of impaliiment at the reporting date,
Far these financial instruments, ECL is palculated based on & lifetime PD, TTD and EAD. Tha Financial
Instrument must ba olassified as In "Stape 3", when it Is credit-impaired,

An expert judgment approach is used to determine the LGD for the Capital Equipment Finance portfolios. This
approach determines the expectsd loss for Stage 3 exposures based on an anficlpated salvage calculation. The
value of the anticipated salvage used in the datermination of the ECL of credit impalred financial instruments is
calculated taking the following factors into account:

¢ Realisable market value of securlty (e.g. stock, equipment, praparty) {after taking account of cosis
associated with such sale}.

Stage and nature of legal process.

Wharewithal of deblor to pay based on evallable credit data (e.g. financiel stalements, cash flows, 3rd
party credit bureau reporis).

Any supporting suretyships or guaraniees.

Financial standing / reputation of the client Company and or related partles.

Any recourse / warranty cisim against a supplier or any other 3rd party.

Any applicable insurance claim.

Any negoliated settlement agreaments.

Timing of expsctad recoveties.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
14 Financial instruments continued

Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR)
The Company defines a SICR for the loans and advances as follows:

« When a deblor Is flagged as High Gare; or
+ Oncs ah account becomes past dus/arrears for more than 7 days end up to and including 30 days.

Clients In High Care are those that have shown signs of financial pressire because of the industry in which they
operate andior besed on the available financial information, are experiencing finangial difficulty.

Default and Curing (IFRS 9)

For purposes of calculating the ECL, the Company views & financial assel as In default and hence in Stage 3 (Le.
oredit impalred), when the borrower bacomes 80 days overdue on its condractual payments. In addition, the
tollowing qualitative factors are elso considered fo determine whether & deblor is in default

s the debtor's business is subject to labour disputes or unresolved management prablems that may affect
its business, production or profitability;

« the debtor is experiencing delays or other unplanned adverse events results in cost overruns Jikely to
require loan rastructuring;

» the increase i the dabtor's borrowings 1s not in proportion Lo the growth of the debtor's busingss;

+ the debtor is experiencing difficufty with repaying obfigations with other creditors; and

+ indlcations that a debtor would enter inte provisional or final liquidation or business rescue.

When a debtor has baen classified as a credit-impalrad (Stage 3), it can be cured to Stage 1 subject fo the debit
belng:

s up fo date, and
+ 3 consscuiive payments pald on or before due date.

Should the debtor be defined as a “High Care” account, it will cure to Stage 2 and not Stage 1. Also, hould the
chant still represent 8 SICR, curing may only take place o stage 2.

For Distressed Restructured loans that were in default, there must be st lsast 6 consecutive monthly payments
under the revised terms, in order fo cure,

Write Off

Loans and advances as wel as dabt securities are written off {sithet pertially or In ful} when there Is no
reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, Thig is generally the
case whan the Company determines that there is no realistic prospect of racovering the monies owed, This
assessment i3 caried out at the individua! asset lavel,

Recoveries of amourdy praviously written off are included In ‘impairment losses on financial instruments’ in the
Statement of Camprehenslve Income.

Financial esssts that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Company's procedures for recovary of amounts due.
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1.8 Financial Instruments continued

Prasentation of Allowance for ECL in the Statement of Flnancial Position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial pasition as follows:

« financial assels measured at amortised cost as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

« financial guarantee contracts: as & provision; and

« where a financial instrument includes both a drewn and an undrawn component, the Company presents
a combined loss aflowance for both componants. The combined amount [s presented as e deduction
from the gross canying amoumnt of the drewn compongnt.

Classification and Measurement of Financlal Liabilities, including Financlial Guarantee Contracis issuad

The Company ciasaifies its financigl liabiitles, other than financlal guarantees and loan commitments, as
measured at amortised cost or FVTPL,

Beracagnition of financial essefs and financlal Fabliities

The Company derecognises a financial asaet when the contractusl rights to the cash flows from the financiel
asset expire, or whan it tranafers the rights to recaive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company nefther transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and & daas not
retain control of the financial assat.

On derecognition of a financial agsal, the difference between the canmying amount of the assst (or the canrying
emount allocated ta the portion of the asset derecognised) end the sum of the consideration received (including
any new asset oblained less any new Jisblity assumed) s recognised in profit or loss, Any interest in traneferred
financiel essets that qualify for deyecegnition that is crested or retained by the Company is recognised as a
separate asset or fabllily.

Tha Company enters into transactions whareby It transfers sssets recegnised on is statement of financial
position but retains either all or substantially 2l of the risks and rewards of the tranefermed agsets or a portion of
them. [n such cases, the transfermed assefs are not deracognissd.

The Company deracoghises a financlal lisbility when Iie contractual abligations are discharged, cangcelled, ot
evpire.

Amortised Cost

Amottised cost finencial assets end financial lisbiitias are measured at the amount determined on Inltial
recognition, less principat repayments and cumulative amortisation using the effective intarest method, and any
difference betwean the iniflal amount and the maturity amount, and for finenciel assets, adjusted for any expecled
credit losa allowance,

Financial Instrumente at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Company has deslgnated financial assets and financial fiabilitles 2t fair value through profit or loss where it
efiminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would othstwise arise. The Company further
clagsifies financial assets and financial babilites at fair value through profit of loss whern the business model is
such that these financisl assets and financial liabililes are managed and measured on a fair vale hasis.

Fingncial assets and financial liabilities at fair vakie through profit or oss are measured at fair valus, with fair
valus galns and loeses reported in non-interest income, apart from those related to interest rate sweps,

The feir value gains and losses on interest rate swaps are included in net interest income, Interest income and

interest expense on debt instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are teported as sush in profit
or loss.
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1.6 Financial Instruments continued

B. Financial Instruments - Policy underJAS 39 (comparative information)

Financial instruments, as reflected on the Statement of Financial Position, include al financial assets, financial
lishilities and dervativa instuments, excluding investments in subsidiaries, associated companles and joint
ventures.

Finanolal assets are recognised on the date on which the Company commits to purchage the asset. Financial
fiabilities are recognised on the date on which the Company becomes parly to the contractual provisions of the
financial labiiity.

Financial instruments are inftislly recognised at fair value,

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of a financial ssset or financial isbiity are recognised in
profk ar loss for financial Instruments measured at fair value through profit or logs and, for all other financial
instruments, against the financial instrument,

Subseguent to iniial measurement, financlal instrumants are sither measured at fair value thraugh profit or loss,
or amorfised cost,

Finanelal Instruments at Falr Value through Profit or Loss

Financial instruments at fairvalue through profit or loss consist of instrumarts held-for-trading and those financlal
instruments that the Company has elected to designate et feir value through profit or loss,

Financial instruments at fair vaiue are classified as held fortrading if they are acquired or incurred for the purpose
of sslling or repurchasing in the short term. Financial assets and liabllities held for trading are measurad &t fair
value. Gains of Josses on held for trading financlal assets and Rabilites are recognised In profit or loss,

Tha Company has designated financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for:

« Financial asssts or liahiitles that are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basls;
or
s Whera it sliminetss or significandly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise or

+ Financlal assets or [lebilities that contain an embaddad derivative that significantly modifies the cash
flows that woukl otherwise be required under the contract,

Financial asssts and financial labilties at fair valua through profit or Inss are measured at fair vale, with fair
valug gains and josses reported In non-interest income, apart from thase related 1o interest rate swaps.

The fair value gains and fosses on interest rats swaps &ra included in net interest income. Interest incame and
interest expense on financial instruments designated at fair valua through profit or loss are reported as such in
profit or loss,

Loans and Recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assste with fixed or determinable repayments that are not
quotad in an active market,

Financial aszels classified as loans and recelvables are camled at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, with Interest income and impairment losses racognised in profit or loss,

Meaguremant
Amertised Cost

Amariisad sost finencial agsets and financial liabiiities are measured at the amount determined on initist
recognition, less principal repayments and cumulative amortisation using the sffective interest rate method, and
any difference between the inftial amount and the matunty amount, less any cumulative impairment losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuad

1.6 Financial Instruments continued
B - Financlal Instruments - Policy under 1AS 38 (camparative information) continued
Financial instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss continued

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fakr value, generally being thelr lssuad proceeds, net of directly aftributable
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost with interest recopnised over the
pariod of tha borrowing, using the effeciive interest rate methed, in profit or kss.

Derecognition

Financlal instruments are derecognised on the date when the Company commils to selling a financial esset o
redeeming a financlal Hability.

The Company derecoghises a financial asset when:

»  The contractuel rights to the cash flows arising from the financial asset have explired or have been
forfeited; or

+ {tiransfers the financial asset, inchuding, substantially, sk the risks and rewards of ownership ofthe
assel, or

= [tneither transfers nor retaing, substartially, all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and no
longer retains control of the agset,

A finencial §iability is derecognised when the confractual cbligations are discharged, cencelled, transferred or
have explred,

The difference beiween the derecognised carrying amount of a financial assst or financlal lishility and the
consideration paid of recelved, including any non-cash aseels transferred or febilities assumned, is recognised in
profit or loss,

Offsetting Financlal instruments and Related Income (IAS 38 and IFRS 9)

Financial asssts and ilabilities are set-off and reported net in the Statement of Financial Position only when there
Is alegally enforceable right to do so and thers is an intertion and ability to seitle or realise the asset or liabilty
on a net basis or smultanaeously.

Income and expanses are presented on a net basis only whan permitted under IFRS, or for galns and losses
arising from a Company of similar ransactions such as In the Company's trading activity

4.6  Derlvative Financlal Instruments and Hedge Accounting (JAS 38 and [FRS §)

A derivative is & financial instrumant that changes value in response to an underlying variable, requires kttie or no
initial net investment, and is setied et a future date. Derivatives ars initlally recognisad at fair value on the date
on which the derivalives are entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair valus.

Galns and losses from changes in the fair valua of derivatives thet sre classifled as held for trading are
recognisad in profit or loss.

182 Impalrment of Financlal Assats {IAS 38)
The Company annuslly assasses financlal assets not at FVTPL for impalment. Impaimment ocours where there is

ohjeclive evidence that & logs event has ocourred after the initial recognition of the financial asset(s) and that the
loss avent has an impact on the future cash flows of the financial ssset(s) that can e measured refiably.
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1.6 Finenclat Instruments continued
B - Financlal Instruments - Policy under 1AS 38 (somparative information) continued

Financial Instruments at Falr Value through Profif or Loss continned

Financlal Assets carried at Amortised Cost

Impairment i calculsted as the difference batween the carrying amount and the present value of sstimated future
cash flows, exciuding future credit lossas that have not been incurred, discounted 2t the financial assel's originel
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are racognised In profit or joss and reflected in an allowance account
against loans and recelvables,

If, in a subsequent pericd, the amount of the impalment loss decresses and the decrsase can be related
to an event acourring after the impairment waa recognised, the previously recognised impairmant loss
i reversad through profit or logs,

Financial Assets carried at Cost

Financial assets carried at cost comprise unqueted equily instruments not carried ot falr value, as falr value
cannot ba relizhly measured, or derivative assets finked fo or fo be setfled by defivery of an unquoted equity
ingirument.

Impaimment is recognisad on financlal asssis cairled et cost where cost of the financial assat exceeds tha present
value of estimated future sash flows arising from the financlal asset,

Impeairment losses recognised on financial assets carried &t cost ara not reversed.

17 Revenue
.71 Net intarest income

Net interest income cotmprises Iinterest income less interest expanse as well as the fair value gains and losses on
interest rate swaps.

Interest income and interest expense on financial instruments and finance lease receivabies ara recognised
using the effective interest method,

The effective interest rate s the rate that discounts future cash payments or receipts over the expected iife of the
finanolal Insfrumertt to the carrying amount of the financial instrinent and finance lease receivables.

In calculating the effectiva interest rate, the Company estimates expacted cash flows considering afl contragtual
terms of the financial Instrument and finance lease raceivables, excluding future credit losses but Including all
fees pald or recelved, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts betwesn parties to the contract,

From 1 July 2018, for financiel assets that have become cradit-impaired subssquent to Initial recogrifion, interest
income |s caloutated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. if the assel
Is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest Income reverts to the gross basls.

Befora 1 July 2018, intereat income on impalred financial assets was racognisad as interest in suspense in the
Statement of Financiel Position, as part of the specific impabments on loans and advances,

The seffective interest rate is established on initial recognition of the financlal instrument and finance lease
receivables and not subsequently revised. '
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ACCOLUNTING POLICIES confinued

1.7 Ravenhue continuad

1.74 Non-Interast Income
Non-intsrast income comprises evergreens, setlement profits and sundry income.

Fee and comrission income from cantracls with customers is measued based onh the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer, The Company recognises revanue when i transfers cortrol over a service to &
customer.

Fee and commission income including administration fees. Fee and Commission income is racognised net of any
irade discounts, volumne rebates and amounts recelved on behalf of third parties such as Value Added Tax.
Furtharmora, when the Company is acting as an agent ameunis coliected an behalf of the principal are not
recognised as revenus. Performance fees can ba variable and recognition is constrained untit such time that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognised will not ocour and the services
related fo the transactions have been completad under the terms of the conlract.

1.8 Taxation
income and capital galns tax comprise curent and deferred texation and are recognised in profit or loss.

1.81 Cusrent Tax

Current tax, comprising income tax and capital gains tax, is caloulated on taxable income for the year based on
current tax legislation.

182 Defarred Tax

Beferrad tax compiising deferred Income tax and deferred capital galne fax is calculated using the Statement of
Financlal Pasition methad agalnat which existing tax lagislation (s applied to temporary differences betweesn the
tax snd accounting bases of assats and lisbilities.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of reallsation or settiement of the carrying
amount of the asset or liability and Is not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed for recoverability at each raporting date,

Daferred tax resulting on items accounted for directly in the Statement of Changes In Equity or Statement of
Comprehensive Income are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Comprehensive
Income respactively.

Deferred tax Is not recognised on:

The initial recognition of goodwiil;
The Inftial racognition of assets and liabillies in a transaction that Is not a business combination, which
affects nelther accounting nor taxable profits and losses; and

+ [Investiments in subsidiaries ang joint ventures where tha Company controls the timing of the reversal of
temporary differences and ¥ Is probeble that theso differences will not reverss in the foresseshle future,

Deferrad tax assets are recognised on tax ksses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
earnad,
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

19 Commitments and Contingent Llabilities

Seties Guarantes and Serles Indemnity

The Series Secwrity SPV has guarantead the Issuer's ohiigation to the Noteholders and the other Saries Sacured
Creditors In terms of the Serles Guarantes. The issuer has, in terms of the Series Indemnity, indemnified the
Serlas Security SPV in respect of ciaims made against the Serlss Securily SPV under the Series Guarantes. In
terms of the Series Issuer Security Agreament, the Issuer's obligation {o the Series Sscurity SPV under the
Serles Indemnity has been secured by: (I)a pledge and (i) & pledge and cession in securitaem debitf, of the
Serles Assets refating to this Series, in favour of the Series Securlty SPV.

Legal Proceadings

Sasfin Bank Limited and the Company have instituted a claim relafing to an alleged breach of a counterparty’s
obligations under various equipment and software lesses. Management Is confident about the prospacts of
recovery and is satisfied that the debtor is adeguately impaired. The counterparty is defending the clalm and has
tefsed a counter-claim of approximately R86 milon in respect of money already paid, for which it seeks a refund.
The Company is vigorously defending this counter-claim.

ltis not yet possibla 1o refiably estimate the possible outcome of this matter al this point in fme,

Sasfin Bank Limited and the Company have instifuted a claim of approximately R10 million for a refund of meneys
which was coflected pursuant to an extant judgement which was subsegquently rescinded and referred to trial.
Management regards the money as having been owed and is also resisting this claim vigorously.

In addition, the company is expozed to certain actuel and potential claims In the ardinary course of its business,
none of which are individually material, Based on information presently avaitable and an assessment of the
probablity of thesa claims, the Directors are satisfled that the company has adequate provisions andfor
insurance cover to meet such claims. As such, management i is not expecting any of these to have a material
adverse effecton the company.

2 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Annual Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make
certain judgemanis, estimates and assumplions in its calculation of the carrying value of assets and Habilitles and
the reporied amounts of profit or [oss,

The assumplions, judgements and estimales used are based on historleal experience and other factors that are
believad 1o be reasonable.

Assumptions, judgements and estimates are reviewed on an ohgoing basis, with revisiohs recoanised In the
period in which the revision was made, or in fulure periods If applicable.
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24 Credit Impairment of Loans and Advances (refer note 8 and note 21)

A, Credit impalment = IFRS 5 {current and future pariods)

The change fram “incurred loss” to en "expected lass" model in accordence with IFRS 6, rasutied in an axiensive
project o update and huild new credit modals to incorporate these changes. The final decrease in the aliowance
for expegted credit loss was R2.454 miflon, sfightly warse than the inftial esiimate of RE.571 miliion This
downward revision was as a result of the re-calibration of Rey input metrics, enhanced daia guaity and the
inclusion of forward-looking Information

The Company assesses [ts loans and advances portfolio for impalmment on a monthly basls using the expected
lnss model,

The Company apphes judgement in the manner in which it defines and applies SICR, which is the driver in
dividing the loans and advances portfofios between Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, with~

+ Stage 1. 12-month expected credit losses for those financlal assets where there has not been a
significant increase in credt risk since initial recognition.

+ Stage 2: Lifetime expected cradit losses for those financial assets where there has been a significant
increase in aredit sk on a collective basks.

= Stage 3: Lifatime expscled credit losses for 2ll oradit impalred financial assets,

Refer accounting policy note 1,12 for more information on SICR,

The Company further applles judgement In determining the inputs used in the ECL model, Le. the PD, LGD, EAD
and TTD that are used ta determine the ECL for each of Stage 1, Stage 2 end Stage 3.

Given tha forward-ooking nature of the EGL model, estimates are also made and Included In the EGL medel for
the Company's macro-economic outiook. One of the key macre-economic elerents are changes ta the prime

The Company considers various scenarios regarding the expected change in the prime interest rats over a 5 year
period and altaches a probebility to the ikelhoed of aach scenatio occurring. In the event of a mild economic
downiumn, the Company expacts the prime interest rate to increase by 0.5% over § years, In this instance the
ECL alowance will be R1.315 million higher thes when no forward-looking information is ncorporatad in the ECL
model. In the event of a severs economic downturn, the Company expscts the prime interest rate to increase by
0.75% over B years. In this instance the ECL allowance will be R5.942 miiion higher than when no forward-
tocking information is incorporated in the ECL model. When a probabliity weighled approach is followed, taking
into account afl possible scenarios and the probabilty of cocurring, the ECL allowance will be R0.846 million
higher than when no ferward-fooking information is incorporated in the EGL model.

{n adidition, the Company applies “axpert judgement®, as referred b in accounting policy 1.6, ta further refine the
oredit lss allowance, The adjusiments based oh expert judgement s subject to CLEC rewisw and oversight.

The Group further applies judgement in determining the inputs used in the ECL model, i.e. the PD, LGD, EAD
and TTO that are used to determine the ECL fareach of Stege 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3.

Given the forward-looking nature of the ECL model, estimatas are also made and included in the ECL modsl for
the Group’s macro-economic outlook. One of the key macro-economic elements are changes to the prime
Interest rate. For each of the scenariog listed below, the averege valugs of the factors aver the naxt 12 months,
and over the remaining forecast perlod are provided,

Up case Expeocted Lits down Severs down me
12 Life 12 Life 12 Life 12 Life 12 Lifa
months time manths thna months time months time months time

% % % % % % % % % %
Factors
Change in prime
irterest rate -0.76 .75 0.25 0.25 0.50 Q.50 0.76 0.75 027251 0.2725
Probabiiity of
Default 1801 2348 1.68 27.13 1.83 28,05 2.28 28.85 1.70 27.1

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'G00

impact on EGL {2 876) {1601) 881 6 829 170 254
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B. Credit Impairment — JAS 38 (comparative information)
211 Performing Loane and Advances

The Company assesses ils performing loan portfolio for impairment on a monthly basis using the incurred loss
approach. The recoverahle amount of performing loans s calculated on a portfolio basls, based on hisfotical loes
ratios, industry and Company-gpecific economic and other conditions.

Impairment i3 recognisad as the difference between the discounted estimated Future cash tlows (the recoverable
amount} on the performing loan portfolio and its camying amount. The future cash flows used to calculate the

recaverable amount excludes consideration of any anticipated future credit losses, The discount rate is the
financial asesfs original effectiveinferest rate.

Ganarally, & period of time will elapse hetwesn the occurrance of an impairment event and avidence of the
impairment becoming evident, the ‘emergence period’. The Company has provided for incurrad but not reported
(IBNR) lossas which recognise potentisl losses on its portfolio of loans and advances that have not yet heen
evidanced. The IBNR provision is calaulated with reference to madeliing parameters which inciude the probability
of default (PD), the loss given the defeuit {LGD)} and amergence periad intarest rate.

24.2 Non-performing Loans and Advances

Non-performing leans compriae loans where thers ia evidence of impairment as a result of one or mare past
evants or impaiment triggers that have cccurred sinoe Iniflal recognition.

Loans antt advances are individually impeired where the Company has identified oblective evidence of a defaisit
evant, such gs beitg dus but unpaid for a period of 80 days or more or whera foan covenants have baen
breached, Estimates of future cash flows on individually impaired loans and advances are based on historical
loss experience for aseets with similar credit risk characteristics after considering the estimated recoversbifty of
gecurity in the Campany's possession.

The methodolagy usad in determining Impalrments on non-performing Equipment Finance and Capital
Equipment Finance loans and advances involves modeliing expected cash flows and recoverability of security.
These inputs are reviewed on a ragular basis with reference 1o historical experiencs.

22 Fair Value {refar note 21 )

Fair velue is the prica that would be reallsed on the sale of an asset or pald to transfer g liability on an arm’s-
length basis fo an unralated party.

The Company measurnes the falr value of a firencisl instrument using lts quoted price In an active market, A
market is ragarded as active if transactions for the financial instrument take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing Information on an ongoing basls,

The most accurate fair value of a financial instrument at Initizd recognition Is normally the transaction price less
the fair value of tha consideration given or recelived. If the Compeny determinas that the fair value of a financial
instrumant (mezsured at amortised cost) at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, and the fair vaiue
is evidanced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical financial instrumant nor based on a
valuztion technique that uses only data from chservabla markets, then the financial instrument is initially
measured st fair value with the difference batwean the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price
recognised in profit or loss aver the Kfe of the instrument, but no later then when the vaiuation Is wholly supported
by observable mearket data or the fransaciion Is closed out.

‘Bid’ prices inan active market are used to measure financial assets held at falr value, while ‘ask’ prices in an
attive market are used to maesire financial Babiiities held at fafr value,

Financial asset portfolios, that are exposed to market risk and credit risk, are measurad on the basis of g prica
that would be recsived when seliing a net Jong position for a particuler risk exposure.

Financial fiabifity portfolios, that are exposed to market riak and credit risk, are measured on the basis of a price
that would he paid to lransfer a short pasition for a particular risk exposure, Market risk and credit risk portfolio-
level adjustments are elffocated to the individual assets and Kabiiities on the basis of the relafive risk adjustment
of aach of the individual instruments in the portfolio.
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CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS continued

22 Fair Value (refer note 2.1} continued

The falr value of & demand deaposit will nol ba less than the amount payabla by the Campany on demand,
discouniad from the first date on which the amount could be reduired to be paid.

The fair value of financial Instruments that are not quoted in active markets or trads infrequently with little price
transparency, requires varying degrees of judgament depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market
tactors, pricing assumptions, and other risks affecting the specific instrument, and s datermined by using
valustion techniquas which are validated and Independently reviewed hy quallfled and experienced senior
personnal within and external to the Company.

The Company's valuation methadologles comprise:

»  Pricefearnings muitipfe valuation methodology;

»  Racent transaction prices and comgparison with similar instruments;
=«  Net asset vaiue;

= Discounted cash flow or earnings; and

+  Black-Scholes.

Assumpftions and inputs usad In the velustion methodologies comprise:

Risk-frea intarest rate,

Benchmark inkerast rates;

Credit spreads, and

Liquidity and olher premia usad in estimaling discount rates, bond and egquity prices, forelgn cumency
exchange rafes, equity and equity indeyx prices, and axpected price volalilities and comalations,

Fair vaiue gstimatas oblained from modals are adusted for factors such as Noquidily nsk or model uncertainties
that the Company believes an indepandent market parfiopant would take Into account whan pricing 2 valustion

Fair Value Hierarchy
Vaiuation Models

The Company measures fair velues using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflacts the sighificance of the
inputs used In making the measursments:

Lavel 1; Inputs that are quoted market pricas (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Leval 2: Inputs other than quoted prices Includad within Leval 1 that are observable either directly (.e.as prices)
or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments velued ualng quoted market pricas in
aclive markets forsimiar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in mankets that are
considered less than active; or othar veiuation techniques in which &l significant Inputs are direclly or indireclly
cbeerveble from market data.

tevet 3; Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valualion technique
Incluces Inputs nat based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant affact on the
nstrument’s veluation, This category cludes instruments that are vakied based on quoted prices for similar
instruments forwhich significant uncbservable adjustments or assumplions are required to reflect differences
beabwean the Inatruments.

Trensfers betwaen levels are recognised at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
ocourred,

23 Gurrent and Gieferred Taxatlon (refer note 11 and note 18)

The Company is subject to direct and Indirect taxation charges. There are elemeants of uncertainty and resultant
judgement Involved In the ulfimate datermination of thess tex belances and cherges. Should the final outcome
differto that initially calculated, the impact ls accounted for in the period in which this culcome 8 known,

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date for recoverability, These assats are reduced to the
extent thet it Is no longer probable that the deferred tax essst will be realised. The significent manegement

essumptions in determining these probability assessments to determing the deferred tex assets recoverabifly ore
the relevant entity budgets and forecasts.
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CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS continued

24 Statement of cash flowe - alfocation © f funding beftween oparating and financing activitics

Management applies significant judgement to determine which portion, if any, of changes in long-term
funding relates to the operating activities of the Banking Group i.e. granting funding to cfients, and which to
funding the investing activities of the Company.

3 STANDARDS/INT ERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

There are hew or revised Accaunting Standards and Interpretetions in issue that are not yet effective for the vesr
ended 30 June 2018, ard have not been applied in preparing these Consolidated and Separate Annual Financial
Statsments. The Company does nof plan to adopt these standards early.

Thase will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory unless ctherwise indicaled. These include the
following Standards and Interpretations that have baen issued, with an indication of the estimated Impact on the
future financial statetments of the Company:

Pronouncement  Tifle and details: Effective Date
Amandment fa Prepaymeni Features with Negalive Arnual periods
IFRS 8 Compensation — Amendments tolFRS9 beginning on or

In terms of IFRS 9, debt instruments can be measured et amortised costor at | after 1 January
fair value thmu?h ofher comprehensive incoma, subjsct to the contractual cash | 291g

fiows being “solsly payments of principle and interest’ on the principal amount )
outstanding (SPP1) and the instrument is an ap e business mode} for
that classification, This to IFRS @ clarifies that a financial asset passes the
SPPI criteria irrespective of the event or circumstances that resulted in the
termination of the contracts and regardless of which party pays or receives the
reasonable compensation for the early termination of contract.

This amendment to IFRS 8is not expected to have a significant on the
ition and Mmessurement of financial assets
the Company in accordance with IFRS ©.

WFRS 17 insurance Confracts

IFRS 17 replaces the current standard on insurance contracts, IFRS 4, it baginning on or
creates one accounting madet for all insurance contracts in sll after 1 January
{uﬁsdictlons that apply IFRS. Amongst others, IFRS 17 requires an entity 2621

0 Mmeasure insurance contracts using updated estimates and )
assumptions that reflsct the iming of cash flows, taking into uncertainty
relating to insurance contracts, The financlal

an ngm reflect the ime value of monsy in estimated required {o seitle
Inc claims. Insurance contracts are further

required to be measured based only on the abligations created by coniracts,
An entity will slso ba required {o recognise profits as an insufance servicels
delivered, rather than on receipt of premiums.

Annual periods

These amendments are not expected fo have an impact on tha Company.

IFRS 16 Leases Annual periods
IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases and relatod interpretations. It seis out the ?ef;',’,".fgﬁ, il e

princlples for the recogniion, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leasss forboth partias o a contract — the customer or lessae and the supplier
or lessor.

HRS 16 Includes a single modal for lessses which will result in leases being
Included in the Statement of Financlal Position. No significant changes have
besn included forlsssors, IFRS 16 also hew disclosure requirements for both
lessees and lessors

These emendrments are not expectad to have an inpact on the Company.
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3 STANDARDSHNTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

Pranouncement Tide end detaile Effective date

[FRS 10 and IAS 28 [Sale or conirbution of assals batween an kwestor and its associate orjoit  [Effective date is

venfire. rred by the |IASB
The amendments require the full gain to be recognised when asssis ndeFinitely.
neferred befween on mvestor and s associte. or o ventira meet e o o evmiton

Kefinition of a'business’ under IFRS 3.Business Combinalions :
Where tha assets lransferred do not meet the definition of e business, & pertlai
ain fo the extent of unrelated investor's interest in the assoclate or joint
vanture [s recognised. determining the tax.

The definition of business is key to determining the extent of the gain to be

tacoghised.

These amerciments are not expested to have an impact on the Company,

FRIC 23 Unpertainly aver income Tex Treatmenis Annual periods
This stendard clarifies the ascounting forincomsa tax reatments that heve baginning on ot
yeat to be accepted by tax authorities. Specifically, IFRIC 23 provides clarity after 1 January
on how o incarporate this uncertainty inde the measurement of &ax as
reporied in the Annual Financial Statements.

IFRIC 23 doas not introduce any new disclosures but reinforces to comply
with existing disclostre requirements about:

s judgements made;

» gssumplions and other estimates used; and

« the potentiel impact of uncertzinties that are not reflacted.

The companf does not expect IFRIC 23 to have a significant
maasurement of tax In the Annual Finencle! Statements.

[ Amendments fo Plan Amendment, Curtaiment or Selflement Amnual periods

UAS 19 This amendment addresses the accounding for defined benefit plans when beginning on or
a plan amendment, curtailment or setflement ocours during a veporiing after 1
heriod,

The amendment s not expected to have an impact on the Company.

Amsndments lo Long-term inferesis In associales and joinf venfures Annual periods

IAS 28 This emendment clarifies that an entity should apply IFRS 9 fo leng-term beginning on or
intereats it an associate o joint venture that form part of the net invesiment | after 1 January
In the assoclats or joint venture, to which the equity methad I nof applied, & { 2018,

therefore implies that the expected credit loss model in
IFRS @ applies to such long-term interasts.

The amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on Company.

All standards and interpretationa relevant to the Company will be adopted at their effective date
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTE
Furxde on call
Notice daposits

2018
R'000

87 102
402 566

489 658

The bank accounis owned by the company ara cedsd as securily for the noles -please refer nole 9 and note 1.8.

Financlal Assets Financial Liabllities
A 2018
R'000
TRADING ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
Derivatives -
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Other receivables avie
Receivables from group entities 51 721
65 439

LOANS AND ADVANCES
30 June 2019

Gross investment in leases
Equipment finance

Capilal Equipment Finance

Less Unearned finance Income

Equipmant finance
Capital Equipment Finance

Net investment in leases

Equipment finance
Capita} Equipment Finance

Loans and advances before Impairments

Credit joss allowance (Refer note 23.3}

Net logns and advances
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Betwesn 2and 5

Total i eas than 1 year yoars
LOANS AND ADVANCES R'0DC R'000 R'000
30 June 2013
Grass investment In leases 4 114 782 1 848 925 2 465 836
Equipment finance 3923840 1 857 418 2 386 523
Capital Equipment Finance 150 822 91 509 99 312
Less Unearhed finance incoma (624 649) (212 635) (412 014)
Equipment finance {895 417) {201 283) {394 154}
Capltal Equipment Finance (20 282) (11 372) {17 860)
Net inveaiment in leases 34980 113 1 436 202 2063822
Equipment finance 3 328 523 1356 154 1 972 380
Capital Equipment Finance 161 580 80138 g1 453
Loans and advances before expected
credit loases 3490113
Impairmente (refer note 42.3) {124 351}
Impairments for non-performing toens end
advances {105 148}
Impairments for performing loans and
advances 19
Net loans and advances 3 366 782

The noles are secured by a cassion of rentals and equipment undsrlying the nstalment finance assets as well as the
bank accaunts owned by SASP - rafer fo notes 4, 3 and 1.9.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Valua Added Taxation

Audit feas and other services
Accounts payable

Payables to group entities

Other payables

Interast hearing seller advances
Acctuals

DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED
Category analysis
Rated *

87 737
1042

132 362

3115432

Floating rate notes are sscured by a cession of rentals and equipment, undsriying instalment finance agsets arid bank
accounts in the name of SASP. All notes are placed with South African investors. The debt securffies in issuance are

rated by Giobal Credit Ratings Co, Refernote 23.

* There are varous ratings on the debt securilies. Thess ralings are available, on request, &t the registored address of

the Group.
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9 DEBT SECURITIES 1SSUED continued

Held at amortised cost

2018
R'000

Class A notes {SLRA1)

Unsubordinated, secured, compuisory radesmable, assetbacked notes of R1 00D
000 sach. Tha notes bear inferest st 3<month JIBAR plus 1.73000%. Scheduled
maturity date Is 15 September 2019,

261 878

Class A notes (SLRA2)

Unsubordingted, secured, compulsory redeemable, asset-backed notes of R1 000

000 each, The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR pluz 1,98000%. Scheduled
maturily date Is 15 September 2021,

2718 158

Class A notes (SLRA3)

Unsubordinated, secured, compuisory redeemable, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 sach. The noles bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.5000%. Scheduled
matnity dale is 15 November 2020.

360 862

Class A notes (SLRAJ)

Unsubordinated, secured, compuisory redeamable, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. The ncles bear interest at 34nonth JIBAR plus 1.7500%. Schedulsd
maturity date is 15 November 2020,

126 382

Class A notes (LRFA2)

Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redesmabie, assetbacked noles of R'1 000
000 sach, The nales bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.800%. Schedulad
maturity dete is 20 Novamber 2019,

282 736

Class A notes (ERS3A17)

Uinsubordinated, secured, compulscry retieemabie, ssset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. The noles beer interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.3800%. Scheduled
maturity date is 17 August 2018.

183 860

Clags A notes (ERS3A20)

Unsubordinated, secured, compulgory redeemable, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 sach. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.5000%. Scheduled

matuity date is 17 August 2018,

178 833

Class A notes (ERSA21)

Unsubordinated, securad, compulsory redeemabla, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 sach, The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.8400%. Scheduled
maturity date is 17 August 2020,

Class A notes (ERSA23)

Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redeamabls, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 sach. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.7500%. Scheduled
maturity date Is 17 August 2018,

156 870

232 453

Class A notes {ERSA24)

Unsubordinated, securad, compulscry redeemnable, assel-backed notes of R1000
000 each. The nofes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.60000%. Schedulsd

matarity date is 17 August 2020.

108 118

Clzss A notes {ERSA25)

Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redeemable, asset-hacked notes of R1000
000 each. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR pius 1.8000%. Scheduled
maturity dafe is 17 August 2022,

284 014
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9 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED continued

Class A notes (ERSA26)

Unsubordinated, secursd, compulsory tredeemeble, asset-backed notes of Rt 000
000 aach, The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.4200%. Scheduled

maturity date is 17 May 2022,

Class B notes (LRFB2}

Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redesmable, asset-backed hotes of R1 000
000 sach. The notas besr interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 2.3500%. Scheduled
maiurity date is 20 November 2018,

53 046

Class B notes (SLRB1)

Unsubordinated, secwed, compulsory redeamabie, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 2.1300%. Scheduled

maturity date is 15 September 2018,

Class B notes (SLRE2)

Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redeemable, asset-backed rotes of R 000
D00 each. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR pius 2.2300%, Schaduled

malurity datg is 15 Seplember 2021.

30 6520

Class B notes (SLRB3)

Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redeemable, assef-backed notes of R1000
000 each. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 2.2500%. Scheduled
malurity dale is 15 November 2420,

45 349

Class B notas (SLRB4)

Unsuborginated, secured, compuisorty redeemable, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. The notes bear inferest at 3-month JIBAR pius 2.3000%. Scheduled
maturity date Is 15 Navember 2020,

31 366

37 438

Class B notes (ERS3IB4)

Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redeemable, assst-backed notes of R1 000
000 each, The notes bear interest &t 3-month JIBAR plus 1.8500%. Scheduled

maturity dats is 17 August 2019,

Class B notes (ERS3BE)

Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redeemable, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. The noles bear inlerest at 3-month JIBAR pkis 2.1500%. Scheduled

maturity dale is 17 May 2018,

100 088

16 179

Class B notes {ERS3BE)

Unsubordinated, secured, compuleory radeemabls, asset-hacked notes of R4 000
000 each. The notes bear Interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.7800%. Scheduled

m date ls 17 May 2022,

Class B notes (ERS3A22)

Unsubardinated, secursd, compidsory redesmable, esset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. Tha notes baar Interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.7500%. Scheduled
malurity date is 17 May 2019.

179 898

Class C notes (ERSIC4)

Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redeemable, assst-backed notes of R1000
D00 each. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 2 3500%. Scheduled
malurity dete is 17 August 2018.

35 398
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& DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED continued 2018
R'000
Class C notes {ERS3CS5) 6074
Unsubordinated, secured, campulgory redeemable, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 3.1500%. Schedulad
maturity date is 17 May 2018.
Class C notes (ERS3CE)
Unsubordinated, secursd, compulsory redeemable, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 2.1500%. Scheduled
maturity date is 17 May 2022,
Class G notes {LRFC2) 17 788
Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redesmable, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each, The notes baar interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 1.3500%. Scheduled
maturity date is 20 Novernber 2019,
Class § notes {SLRC1) 35 444
Unsubordinaled, secured, compuisory redeemable, asset-backed nofes of R1 000
000 each. The notes baar interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 2.940%. Scheduled
maturity date Is 15 September 2019.
Class C notes {SLRC2) 20 259
Unsubordinated, securaed, compuisory redeemable, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. The notes bear interest at 3-maonth JIBAR plus 3.15000%. Scheduled
maturity dete 1s 15 September 2021,
Ciass C notes {SLRC3) 25 308
Unsubordinated, secured, compulsory redeemabls, asset-backed notes of R1 000
00G each. The notes bear interest at 3-month JIBAR plus 2.6860%. Scheduled
maturity date is 16 Novermber 2020.
Ciass C notas (SLRC4) 25 316
Urnsubordinated, secured, compulsory redeemeble, asset-backed notes of R1 000
000 each. The notes bear interest at 3month JIBAR plis 2.8000%. Scheduled
maturity date is 15 November 2020.
1441 716

The notes are secursd by a cession of rentals and equipment underlying the instaiment finance assets as well as the

bank accounts owned by SASP - refer to nales 4, 7 and 20

10 LONG-TERM LOANS

Represented by: Repayment Date
Tha Hollard Insurance Compay 17 August 2022
Limited

Longderm loans are inferest bearing and the interest rates are individually negotiated.

2018
R'00G

b 500
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L]

L)

DEFERRED TAX AND LIABILITIES 2018
R'00D
Oeterad tax Nabikly 78 620
RECOGMISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILTIES
Deferrad 1ax ansets and labiities oo strbulable to the following:
W8
Lisbilitiea Nt
R'090 Fe 000
Eguipment Finance - 4 487
—Prandsions (7967) [7887)
NET TAX ASSETARLIABILITIES) {7967 6 5
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES cominuad
IFRE 9 transition - Recognised in
Balenca at 1 July day 1 Profil ot Loss Balance al 30 June
Q%VEMENTS IN TEMPORARY DI FERENGES DURING THE YEAR R'000 Roco R R'D00
Enuipment finarice
Prowistons
2018
Equipment financa [GE 1 ERAE] 84 487
Pravigons 7814 . (353) (7967)
Gorivalivas 15 115 -

B3 975 - 12 045 76 520
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ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL 2018

AUTHORISED R'000

100 000 000 (2018: 100 000 00N) ordinary shares of 1 cant each 100

1SSUED

{2018: 32 156 882) fully paid up ordinary shares

Balence at the beginning of the year 100

Balanito atthe end of the year 100

RECONCILIATION OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES ISSUED

Total shares in lssus {number) 100 000
100 000

PREFERENCE SHARE CARITAL Rand Rand

AUTHORISED

100 {2018: 100) non-redeemable, non-cumulative preference

shares of 1 cent gach. 1

MSUED

100 {2018: 100) non-redeemable, non-cumulative preference

shares of 1 cent éach 1

INTEREST INCOME R"000

Effective interes! rafe 476 197

Deposits with banks 308186

Equipment finance 428 929

Capital Equipment finance 18 453

Other interast 1 986

Trading assets and other 1 888
478 183

Totai interest ingome (IFRS 9)

- Performing financis! assets

- Crecit impaired financial assets

Interest Income on items measurad at fair value through profit or loss

{IFRS 8)

INTEREST EXPENSE

Effeclive Interast 300 801

Deht sacurities 25t 17

L.ong-term borrowings 780

Loans from entities in the group 50 314

Other Inferest {1 607}

Fair value adjustments on interest rate swap {1 607)—1
200 64
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161 NET FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE
Fee and comyrission Income
Other fes and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Commission expenses
Other fee and commission expanse
Administration and management fees
Revenue share expense

Nel fee and commission expense 688) {160 748}

16,2 OTHERINCOME

Income recaived on Evergreens 95 3N

Seitlament profits 22 378

Sundry income 393

118 143

171 SECRETARIAL COSTS
Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration 214
214
17.2 OTHER OPERATING COSTS
The following Rems are induded in opersating expenses

Fees peid to auditors 14
Audit fees - Current year 14 l

Other services a2

Consulting fees 312

Sun enses 4 548

5 066

418 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

CURRENT TAXEXPENSE 20 883

Current year 20 563

(OveryUnderprovision in prior years -

DEFERRED TAX EXPENSE 12 845
Gurrent year 12 645 |

33 208
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18

19.4

18.2

19.3

INCOME TAX EXPENSE continuad 2018
R0
RECONCILIATION OF TAXATION RATE
%
South African normal tax rate 26%
Adjusted for:
Capital gains 0%
Effect of tax rates in forelgn entity 0%
Overprovision in pror years ** 0%
EFFECTIVE RATE 28%
CASH RECEIPTS FROM CUSTOMERS
Interest Incoms 478 7N
Other intome 120 880
600 681

CASH PAID TO CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND EMPLOYEES
Interest expense {300 601)
Total aperating expenses (181 982}

(462 593)
CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (118 807}
Impairment charges on loans and advances (20 406)
Fair value adjustments on financial instruments included in Net
inferest Income 1126

{128 088)
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184 TAXATIONPAID

Unpald at the beginning of the year 15 440
Charge to the Income statement {20 562)
_Unpaid at the end of the year 8 737
3 816

185 DIVIDENDS PAID
Charge to disiributable ressrves {26 00O}
Tatal dividends paid {28 000}

20 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Subsidiaries and controllad alructured entities

sa[wapunnsgum.m‘

ol ety

rr 106% J'toa% ¥ 100% l 100% lm%
TN WEALTH PTH FIN CAFUTAL (PTY) FiN FROPERTY
lﬁ;‘g SASFIN PRIVATE o1 OLOINGS {PTY) LTD
SASFIN BANK LIMITED EQUITY INVESTMENT
viausly SeefirFinenclsl| JHOLDINGB(PTY) LTD nraviously Sastn Private usly Sashn
rvicas (Pty) L4} uily Fuhd Manageta mercial Solutions (Ply)
— i)
NLYN (PTV LTD
100% legally owned by
ovantinvestment
Idings (Ply) Lid) e st et et
SASFIN SECURITIES SUBSIDIARIES
— (FTY} LTD 0%|
SCUTHAFRICAN » 5CS {Global Trads) 100.00% SCS
ISECURITISATION [Gioup Support) 10000% Sasfin
ROGRAMME (RF) N sﬂg i ] %{gﬁ*
e e iy
val ownershipheld | Ypry)LTD Jau4
58 Trust)
SASFIN ASSET
ANAGERS(PTYILTD | joom
SASEIN ASIALIMITED
100%
[stered in Hong Kong) SEINWEALTH
NVESTMENT PLATFORM
PTY)LTD
il
nreviousty SIPP
nvastmants (Ply) L)
FINTEGH RECEIVABLES
100% |FINTECH{PTY) LTD —> b (RF) LWITED
LEGEND
E] Bank
: Vatin
LPROFERTY |
A0 o VESTMENTS (PTY) LTD ™ copat
[} stucusdensy

1 -Sasfin Capital{Ply) Lid was unbundied o Saslin Holdings Limiied on 1y 2017.
*  Significan! sharehoklers of Saxfin Holdings Limited

- Unifas Enterprisas Limied (2018: 42,36%; 2016; £1.04%), a whollyowne company of The Erwin Discredionary Sefiloment Trust afwhich Rotang
Sassoon and Michea! Sassoonane benellciarias, 50
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20 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND RELATED REMUNERATION

Birssiars' and Prescribed officers ramuneralion

Gash package 1 Othar hanaifita # Incantive bonum Totl
R R R R

o1
INDEPENDENT NOMN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
D Gavendsr
2018
EXECUTIVE DIREGTORS
Roland Sassoon 3641630 §37 708 750 000 5020 634

3641 930 837 Y4 750 000 5 028 834

The remuneration of the dirgolors are pald by the Contndling Company.

203 LOANS TOIFROMENTITIESIN THE dROUP

e

R000
Loans to hoiding company
Sashin Bank 372 408
Total losns from entities In tha Group 372 408
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203 INTERCOMPANY RECEWVABLES J {PAYABLES) WITH ENTITIES IN

2018
R'000
Recaivable from f {payable) fo ultimate holding company
Sasfin Bank Limited
Sagfin Bank Limited

78 889
{148 288)

{70 419)

Recelvable from ] {payabie) to fellow subsidiarias
Fintach Underwriting Praprietary Limited
Fintach Underwriting Proprietary Limited

4 845
{8 308}

(3 783)

Nat total recelvable from f (payable) to entities In the Group (74 182}

204 TRANSACTIONS WITHHOLDING COMPANIES, SUBSIDIARIES AND FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

Controiling
Company Other

R'000 R'009
2019
Interast paid
Interest received
Fee and commilsslon income
Fee and commission expanse
Management Fees
Dividends pald
Maitland Group

2018

Interest paid (40 475)

Interast received

Fee and commission income AB E77

Fee and commission expense {86 040)

Management Fees 214

Dividervds paid {26 0D0)

Maitiand Group {752}
{102 938) {638}
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24 FINANGIAL ASETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

22

wte
Level ¥ Level 2 Lovel 3
RDO0 R'0G0 R'Qa0

RECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Financial Azssts - 18 288 .
Tratlng nagets - 18250 N I
Financiat Linhliitlss - - -
Trading ebiities . . L]
FINANCIAL ASSETS NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
FINANCIAL ASSETS - 3 836 418 £8 491
Gash ang cash equivalents - 460 ght -
Other receivables - - 55 481
Loans and advances ! - - 3 365 761
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 3 47¢ 287 + B 812
Trade and ather payebles - 132 Jai
Debt securifes Issued 3115 432 - .
Long-term ans 363 888 14250

‘the camying amount of fsnglel assels Bnd financisl Yabiitss, racogrised at emoriised cest, s considerad 5 reasonabla epproximation of feir valve.

g

memmwwammmmmmmwwuwammmmhmm,mmamm Lavel 2 mputs are observable in the markel,
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The responsibiity for risk management resides at all levels, from the Sasfin Holdings Limited (*SHL") Board through
1o alf empioyees of SHL. The SHL Board has overall responsiblfity for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk managament framework

Risk management is fimdamental to the Group's husiness activities, enabling management to operate effectively In a
changing and highly regulated enwironment, The Group remains committed to the objectives of increasing
shareholder valus by developing and growing the Grotig within ite Board-approved riak appstite and by seeking an
appropriate balance between risk and reward.

221  Risk Management Framework

Govemnance

The sasponsibiity for sk management resides at all kevels, from the Board through to all amployees of the Grougp.
The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management frameworic.
The ALCO and GRCMC, both of which are commitlees of the Board, are responsible for monitoring Group risk
manegement policles in their specified areas of responsibility. The GRCMC, ALCQ, CLECG (previcusly CIC), and IT
Committee have bath Executive and Non-Executive Directors as members, including members of sxecutive
manegement aa invimea. The GACC, DAG and REMCO have only Non-Executive Directors as members, with
Exacutive Directors and members of senlor management as invitees, The chair of each Board committee reports
quarkerly ar as required 1o the Board on the activities of their respective sommittess.

The Group's rigk management poficios are established to ldentify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls 2s well as to monitor rigks and adherence fo limits. Risk management policles and
systems are reviewead regularly to reflact changes in market conditions as well as products and services offered. The
Group, through lts training and managament cf standards and procedures, has daveloped a disciplinad and
constructive control enviranment, in which all employess undsrstand their roles and obligations,

The Group uses the following fines of dafancs:

o Businass unit management is primarily responalble for risk managemant s agsessment, evaluation and
measurament of risk Is integrated with the day-to-day activities of the business. This process includes the
implementation of the Group risk management polides, identification of key areas of sk, and
implementation of comective getion where required. Busingss unil management s also responsible for
appropriate reporting to e govamance hodies within the Group.

o The Group Risk and Group Compliance divisions are indapendant offine management. These Group
funciions are primarily raspongible for setting tha Group's risk and compliance management framework and
pokcy, and praviding oversight and independent reporting to executive management, ALCO, GRCMC and the
Bosrd.

o The GIA funclion provides an independent assessment of the adequacy and effecliveness of the overall risk
managemsnt framawork and reports directly to the GACC, The GACC is responshble for monlfoting
compliance with the Group's risk and compliance management policies and procedures, and for reviewing
the adequacy of the risk management frameworls in refation fo the tizks faced by {he Group. The GACC is
assisted in these funclions by GIA, which underakes both reguler and ad hac reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of whichare reported to the GACC.

222  Risk types, definitions, governance standards, policles and procedures

The Group has developed a set of policies, procedures and standards foreach mejor risk fype to ensure alignment
and consistency In 2 manner in which the major risk types across the Group are identiflad, measured, managed and
reported on, All policies and procedures are approved by GRGMC and appliad consistently across tha Group.

The risk gavemance principles in respect of market and liquidily risic have remained relstively unchanged from the

prior year, The implementation of IFRS 9 lead 1o the refinement of certain of the risk govemance principles ralated to
gredit risk, Refer note 23 for mara Information.
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CREDIT RISK

Credi rigk is the risk of a financial loss sternming from a batrower's faliure to repay & loan or otherwise fail to mesta
contractual obligation

Credit risk arises principally from fhe Group’s loans and advances, deposits placed with other banka, negatiable
securities, financial guarantess issued, carty fadilities granted and letters of credit issued. For risk management
reporting purposes, the Group considers and sonsolidates all elements of credit risk exposure (individual chligor
default risk as well as country end sector rigk).

Management of Cradit Risk

The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to the CLEC and CIC, The
Group credit depariment, which reports to the Chief Operating Officer of Sesfin Bank Limited, Is responsible for
oversight of the Group's cradit risk, including:

o Fomulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covaring collateral requirements, credit
assessment, risk grading and reporting, documentary and legal proceduras, and compliance with regulatory
and statutory reguirements;

o Establishing the autherisation structure forthe approvel and renewal of aredit faciiies, Authorisation limits,
as approved end reviewed regularly by the Board, are allocated to business unit credit officers. Larger
facilfies may require approvel by Group Credit, Head: Group Credit, CLEC, GIC or the Board:

o Reviewing and assessing credit fsk, Group Credit assesses all credit exposuree In excess of designated
limits, prior to fechities baing committed to customers by the business unit

o Limiting concentrations of expoaure to counterparties, geographles and industries for loans and advances,
deposits with banks and investment securities (refer note 23.1);

o Developing and maintaining the Group's visk indicators in order to categorise exposures acoonding to the
dagree of risk of finandal loss Taced, and 1o focus managsment on the attendant risks. The risk system is
used in determining where impairment provisions {l.e. provisions for credit losses) may be requirad against
specific credit exposures, The current risk framework consists of four grades reflecting varying degrees of
risk of dlefault, availabifity of collataral or other tredit risk mitigation. The responsibility for sefting risk grades
lias with the final approving executive/commities, Risk grades are subject to regular reviews by Group Risk;

o Reviewing complianca of business units with agresd exposure fimits, including those for selected industries,
country risk and product types. Reguler reporis are provided to Group Credit on the credit qualty of focal
porticlios and appropriate carrective action is taken; and

o Providing advice, guidance and gpacialist skifls to business units to promote best practice throughout the
Group in the management of credit risk.

Each business unit is required o implement Graup credit policies and procedures, with credit approval authorities
delegated from the CLEC or CIC. Each business unit is also responsible for the quality and performance of its
credit portfolio, and for mohitoring and controlling ail credit risks in is portfolios, including those subject to Group
approval.

Regular audits of business units and Group Credit processes are undertaken annually by GlA.

Securhtisation

The Group uses secixitisefion primarfly as a sowrce of funding for its lending operations, by adding Hexibility o
structural liquidity risk and diversifying its funding base. All securiticable assets are subject to the Group's credit Ask
policies and procedures,

‘The Group fulfils a number of roles In the process ofsentiritising these assets, Including that of originator, sponsor,
hedge counterparty and administrator, and applies its Group credit risk policles and procedures to these funclions.
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Impalred Loans and Securities {§AS 39)

These are loans and securities for which it la probable that the Group will be unsble to collect all principal and
interast due in accordance with the contrachial terms of the loanfsecurifies apreemant(g). These |oans ere graded in
the Group's Internal credit risk grading system.

Past due bu not impaired loans {JAS 38}

These ars loans and securities where contractual interest or principsl payments are past due, hut the Group befieves
that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the evet of security/coliateral avallable, andfor the stage of
collection of amounts owed fo the Group,

Loans with rensgotiated terms

These are joans that have been restructuned due to deterloration In the borrower's financlal position and where the
Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise conaldar, Once the loan is restruciured, it remains In this
category independent of satisfectory performance after resiructuring.

The following requirements need to ba met before a restructured loan may be reclassified as Stage 1 (IAS 39 -
parfarming):

o The ahligor's ahbility to meet the requirements of the revisad terms and conditions must be established
through at least 6 (six} consecutive months of adherence to the revised fenms and

o incases of wholesale obligors or obligors with payments dated longer than monthly, an evalualion may be
dana by the refevant cradit mandete level, taking into account quafitative factors in addition fo adhanance to
the revised terms and condifons. Such quefitative factors may include compliance with loan covenants and
compliance with other existing loan obligations;

o |nno case may any restructured credit exposure be reclassified as Stage 1 (IAS 39 - performing within) &
(si¥) montha of the resiructure; and

o The revised tanns and condifions of the restructure, should still amortise the princpal Inan amount over the
remaining tanm of the loan and muet be well-documentad for review by the SARB,

Credit Impairment (IFRS 9)

The Group: determines an aliowance for credit losses that represents its estimate of expected credk losses on its [oan
portfalio. Refer accounting policy note 1.12 and nota 2.2 for more information.

Credit Impatrment (IAS 38)

The Group estebilshes an stfowance for impsirmant loszes that represants its estimate of incurred loages in its loan
parifolio. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significent
gxposures, and a porifolio loan loss allowance established for groups of homogeneous assets in respact of losses
that have besn incurred but have not been identified on loans subject ta individual assessmeant for Impeirment.

Write-off Policy (IFR8 & and 1AS 39)

Loans and security balances (and any related allowances for impainment lesses) are written off when it s delemmined
that these loans and securities are uncollectible. This determination Is reached after considering information such as
the oceurrence of significent changes In the borrower'a or jesuer's financlsl position resulting in the borrowerfsster

no longar being i a position to pay the obligation, or that proceads from eollateral will not be sufficlent to pay back
the entire exposure.
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Credlt Risk Measurement and Determination

The Group uses internally devsloped modsls and practicas (o measure and manape cradit rigk, by utlising skiled
resources to ansure itis properly managed and contralled. The Group has adopted the standardised approech in
terms of Basel [lf to measure credit risk, and uses the regulatory risk buckets per the SARB as measurement criterla
for assessing performing counterparties as follows,

2019 SARB risk buckel!  Categorisation of counterperty 2018 SARB rigk bucketf Categorisation of counterparty
Credit risk grade _{FRS 9) Credit risk gradle {IAS 38)
A Stage 1 and Stage 2 A Performing loans and advances
Non-parforming loans end advances
B Stage 2 B -Spacial mention
CDE Stage 3 c -Sub-standard

b -Doubtful
E -L.oss

Collateral for Loans and Advances

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances in order to raduce cradit risk, Atthough collateral is heid, the
Group's palicy is to establish ihet loans and advances which are granted, are within the customer's capacity to repay
the amount, rather than to rely on the collateral held against them. Estimates of the fair value of collateral are based
on the value at the time of borrowing and are updated annually If an account is individually assessed for impairment,
Collateral includes general notarial bonds over the client's stock ard other assels, cession of debtor books as well as
continuous covering morgage borkis aver proparly. Insurance taken out by the lender on loans and advances is aleo
viewed as callateral,

Concentration Rlak

This is the risk of a matetial exposure by the Group to & small number of depositors, lenders, financial instruments,
individuals, corporates, institutions or geographies.

23 CRED{T RISK
2341 Credit Risk Exposure Analysls

The fallowing table contalns an analysle of the credit risk exposure of financiat instruments forwhich an ECL
allawancs s recognised. The gross carrying amount of financial assets below alse represents the Group's maximum
axposure to credit risk on these assets, by credit quality. Given the Implementation of IFRS 9, without restating the
20118 numbers, the information below is not comparable in 2!l respects,
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234 Credit Risk Exposurs Analysis continuad a

Credit Risk Grading A A 8 Default {C, It & E)
ECL Staging Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2 Stage 3

Total {12<month ECL  Lietime ECL  Lifatime ECL Lifslime ECL
2008 00D R'D0C R0 R'0CD R0

Masxbnm crafit sxpasures of financial assols
asmoriisodf cost

Cash and cash aquivalenis!
Other Raecelvablas?
Ciwesnl, Tex Asset®
Lo#n and advances

Eguipment finance

E finance

Grass caylng amowt
fesy: Credi loss aflowance
Het canylng amount

Maximum oredit oxposures an financial aanets at
FVTPL

—-Treding auscls
Total sxpokure to credit risk

1 Management has assossadiiess as hiyh-qually iqukd acsels haki with inatiiutions wikh & kow riek of cefailt and hence no ECL alowence hes been mcoprled for Brmss.
2 Givan the shart-lamm nalure, 1o EGL alwance hes been moognied
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23,1 Cradit Riek Exposure Analysls ¢onilpuad
Group maximum Coneolldated Statement of Financlal Position exposura to eredit ritk by credit qualiy

ni Performing loana Past dus but Impalred Groze maxiram  Security agwinst  Netlmpaired
and advances not impeired exposure kred exposuny
R0D0 R'0D0 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'ODY
Cath and cash aguivalents 489 659 - - 468 658 - -
Lo8n ard AdVANoas 2330 782 4203 149082 248G 113 43 9i0 08 148
Ecuipment finance 3 178 087 4 263 148 §73 3835 523 43 680 104 523
Gapliel Equipment fhanca 60878 - 916 je1500 280 : |
Other receivables 5543 - . 56 4% . .
Oer rocaivablas | 55 438 . - 55 4% - ]
Trading sssets 18 268 - - 18 258 B )
3 580 147 4383 49 088 4733 458 43 940 105 148
Add: Financial instraientz not expoxad o credl risk
Lesn; Credit impalnments forbbans snd advances 124 381)
-~ npaiments for nan-performing loans and advanoes H05 143)
. Jor Yosne and @ {19208
2908 447
Represanted by the foRowing Consoldaled Statersnt ef Financlel Pasition lloms:
Cesh and oash equivalents 460 658
Lobns, and advances 3365781
Trading asssls RUF
_Other receivailes 6438
3809 117
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211 Crottt Risk Exposure Analysis contiusd

lmpairednexpomm of non-performing loans end Spvcial mention Sub-standard Boubtiu Expacted foss H:;Ln;g::eﬂ
R'00f R'000 R'00C Ra0D RO0D
2018
Equipment finance 1877 498 asn 95 480 104 524
Caplial Equipanent Finanos 625 E - - 625
2302 438 387t 68 490 185 148
Past dus bat not impaired loans and advences dr:;smm 91 -80 days 61-00 days >0 daya Yotal
R'000 R'DOG R'00D R'o0d R'000
0ie
Ageing of ivans and edvances pas! due bt not
Impairod
Loans end adwences 3 049 Bi5 209 . 4263
3048 [i1] 209 - 4 263
018
Cencentration riek of advancan R'oon
Sectorial anelysis
Agricutiure 42 762
Commurity, social and persona) sarvices 1067 420
Construction 108 050
Elecliriclty and water 18 481
Finonce, real astate and basiness sarvices 788 898
Manuteciuring 384 022
Hdining &6 386
Trade and accommodation FL A
Trensporl and commupicaton 23081

Tolal

A408 113
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A2  Collateral and Other Socurity Enbanceiments

.24 Deseription of Collatersl For Loans and Advances

Logns and achance Securlty

Equipment finsnce \Mmm&wpmmmrdﬂpolmemtsMeqnpnmtmmmmmmﬂmofmﬁmmﬂmlydmmm:
the velus of the quime etens) puImoses

Capial aquipmant finance o pdmu-ymlm hrcnphi Em meni Fhama ln u:eplanbhqlﬂsmam beimih'mneed. Heweves, cthar security tumﬂsgmml mlﬂlnl
bonde over other #nd conlinipits m borgds tive) B en o increase the

23.23  CoRsmtarsl Hold Agalnkt thdividualty Impalred Assots

Seourity
Gross Exposure | Flied asaels Totsl Unsecured
R'oan R'000 R'000 R0

2018
Loans snd edvances
Equipmant Finence
Capitsi Equipmant Finance
28
Loana and sdyancas
Ecuipment finance 3328 523 30266843 3028648 501 880
Canttsl equipmert finance 161 590 145 108 1456 108 16 484

3 400 119 A171740 34T 748 318 384
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233 Credit boss AHowance Analysis
FRS B Fransition,

231 Reconclialien of ECL On Loans and Advances at Amostlsed Gost

W01

Crodit loss allowanes on 61 July 2013
Trunslers between alagea!

Transfer {lo)#from stage 1

Transfer fromdto) stage 2

Transfer fromito) stags 3

Net sxpectad cradit lonses (relessedraised
EGL on niew exposure ralsed
Changa v ECL dus 30 daresonition?

mpalred accounts wiillsn off
Credlt loss allowancs on 30 June 2018

fu:’xm&muphmpmbbam hhMMEGLMmmmmmE&smﬂsheW‘ of the padiod and ils ECL stags at e end of the mporing period, for
thoss exposures exisionce,

2 Loans and advances had conlracted during the firs! haif of the year, as & result of lha expaclad fun-off of the Absa Technalogy Finance Solulans (ATFS) reniat fnance
boak. The Group has further fmproved its cradit ioss ratio, despite & Gilffol credit anvitonant oo 4 b )
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2322 Reconcilistion of ECL en Louns and Advances at Amortised Cost by Produet

Gradit foss allowanee Taota} transiew Net ECLralsedl  Impsired accounts  Creditloss slowance '

an 1 July 218 batwaen stages {ralsasad) written off ot 55 June 2049
R0 R0 RU0G R000 R000 i
Equipmant finence 118 383 9 dlg {1 401) {21 Bz 181 £18
Stage 1 1 308 {3867) 4 007 ; 18628
Stage 2 2 661 2een 4157 ; 54T
Stage 3 23414 75762 {0 6a8) {21 882 117710
Cepital squipment Hnanae 4442 1811 443 - 2738 ;
Staga 4 1847 (1239 482 F 1062
Stage 2 1 207 1 . 208
Sigge 8 4584 2741 - - 7935 |
Total 121828 viasm _qsy {21 882} 170 284
Stage 1 20 158 {4924 4 489 F 19720
Stage 3662 {2340 4158 5 480
_Staged 2 008 78 483 (9 565) (21882 145 054 |
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Equipment finance  Capita) Equipmest Finance Tott
2018 R'O0p RO R'000
Non-parforming Ioans
Bolanca at beginhing of the year 99 688 - 29 apg
Mol \nombments ralger / {relensed) 463 626 5261
Balance st end of the year 104 624 625 105 148
Parlorming loans
Befanca et baginning of the year 13 024 264 13288
Net lronts elahsed 5835 0 5784
alance of r 19850 182 18 022

Total et 1

B .7 S,  _ % 1 4 I}
A 5% (2017; 5%) Increzse or dacreass In the probubllty of defauk and Joss ghvon defeull rates, remuls in a RT.8 mllfon {2017 R2.63 mifon) Inoreata and R1,732 milion (2017; R244

milian) decressa respectvaly, © the impainvent of performing kvans,

733 CREDIT IMPAIRMENT CHARGES RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR1LOSS

2099

R'000
IFRS S
Nat ELC recognised 71732

I — {311
Recoveries of joans and advances previcusly wilttsn off {3074)
A5 39
Net impaimnenis relset! for non-performing losns 14 482
=
Amounis written off, nsl of racoveries 224
Het kmpsinnents releasediratsed for parforming foens (Y13
increeseDiecransa I afiowance I 5914 I
Amaunts wititen off, nel of recoverfes =

S8 858 20 408
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24 LIQUIDITY RISK

Liguidity risk is the risk that a hank may be unable to meet short-term financial demands, This usually occurs due to
the Inability to convert a securly or hard asset to cash without a loss of capitel andior income in the process.

This risk is Inherent in ail banking and financial service operations and oan be impacted by arange of institution-
spacific end market-wide events,

Management of Liquldity Risk !

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it wik always have sufficlent Rquidity
fo mest ils lisbilties, when due, under both normal and sireseed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
tisking demage to the Group's reputation. ALCO sets Emits and mandates for exscutive management to manage the
liquidity risk within this framework.

Tressury recelves Information from ofher business untis regarding the liquidity profile of their financial assets and
Eabifles and detalls of projected cash flows arising from future business, Treaswry then maintains a parifolio of short-
torm fiquid sssets, largely made up of shorl-term liquid investment sectrrities, interbank loans and other interbank
facilities, 1o ensure that sufficlent liquidity ls meintained within the Group as a whole, The kquidity requirements of
business units and subsidieries are met through short-term loans from Treasury o cover any short-term fluctuations
and longer-term funding to address any structural fiquidity requirements. The Group believes that the management of
liquidity should encompass an overall Consalidated Statement of Financial Posilion epproach, which consalidates &l
sources and uses of liquidity while meinteining a bakance between liguidity, profitability end interest rate
considerations,

Liquidity Risk Measurament

The Group's daily liquidity position is monttared and reported in the form of cash flow projactions in termns of key
perlods ranging from demand to long term. Regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety of scenarios
ranging from notmal to severe market corditions. Al liquidity policles and protedures are subject to review and
approvat by ALCO. Dally reports cover the liquidity position of the Greup, operating subsidiaries and foreign
branches. A summary report, including any exceptions and remediel action taken, is submitted regulary to ALCO.
Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed to maintain a wide diversification by financial product and form.

Exposure to Liguidity Risk

The key measure used by the Group for managing liquidity rigk is the ratio of net liquid assels to deposits from
customers. For this purpose net liquid assets are considered as including Cash and cash equivalents and investmant
grade debt securities for which there is an active and liquid market, less any deposite from banks, debt securiies
tesued, other borrowings and commitmerds maturing within the next month. ALCO monitors the Group's expostits to
ligukdity risk In lerms of intemal benchmarks It has set and defined for Treasury to malntaln,

To manage the Jiquidity risk arising from financial liabilifies, the Group holds high-quality liquid asssts comprising
Cash and cash equivalents, treasury bills, land bank bills, and negotiable certificates of deposit forwhich there is an
active liquid market.
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241 CONTRACTUAL MATURITY ANALYSIS

219

Disooumied maturity
Aszels

Cash and cash eguivelenis
Trading ausely

Obur recshvablas
Loans and advances
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4 CONTRACTUAL MATURITY AMALYSIS onfinvet

018 Carying Amouat Gross Outflowy  Lscthen  1-3 - AU dgyers 3o Nencontmctual  Totl i
Distounted maturity R000 R'0O0 R'Nos R'G0D R0 R'000 RO0OD  RO8O R'000
Assets
Cash and cash exivaienis 460 658 4690838 469658 = - - . . 480660
Trading asssis 18259 16 258 ¥ {758 16518 - % 288
Giher raeivables 55 430 55430 prevey - § 500 . . z 65 49
Leane and advances 3385 782 S3AS7E2 152456 SSAEBO 1026240 2089828 - (124 351) 3365762
Total Apsets _ 2909147 3800 17 &M 87 1030 848 18 M9 404 351) 9900 147
Undiszonted matarity
Uhtillites
Trade and diher payables 132 562 132 382 - R - - iszaee
Drabt gecutiles tssved 3115 432 IBI0871 . 426073 WG ZHM I - - 3808
Long-term loers 378 385 454 735 . 539t 26598 423119 - - A5
. Totsi Lishfities 3626970 Aterass - GEAGS2  dDOETD 3209887 . . 407488
Currant Provizions Duposits Debt Long Deferrod
Taxetion and other from ascurities. tam tax
Uinbltiex payables customers  ksued taans linbilRy
Discounted maturity
Currend FakiliBas 873 132 362 - BMI® 3198 -
Nonecument Habiifles ; - 2508738 423110 7680
Totg! ST 182 382 - JGI0AT 454 T8 8 530
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25 MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interast rates, aquity prices, forelgn exchange rates and credit
spreads {not relating to changes in the obligor's/issuer's credit standing) will affect the Company’s income or the value of is

holdings of finencial instrurnents. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acoeplable parameters, whife optimising refurn,

it s tha risk of change in the actual or effective market value or earnings of & portfolio of financial instruments caused by
adverse movemenis in market variables. The Company's market rigks are:

& Interest rate risk —the risk of difference in the repricing characteristics of assels and lisbliities;

Management of Market Risk
Non-frading porifoiios

Non-trading porifolios are heid by Treasury and are associaled with fluctuations in the market price of assets and liablities.
Accordingly, the Company has exposure fo interest rate tak in respect of non-trading portfolios,

Ovarall authority for market risk Is vested with ALCO. Company Risk Is responsible for the development of detalled risk

management poficies (subjact to review and approval by ALCO and GRCMC) and for the day-to-day review of their
implementation.

Exposura to Interast Rate Risk
Non-trading portfolios

The principal risk to which nondrading portfolios are exposed s the risk of loss Trom fluctuations In the future cash flows or
fair values of financial instruments bacause of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk s managed principally
thraugh monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limils for repricing bands. ALCO is the Board-delegated
monltoring commities for complianca with these limits and is assisted by Gompany Risk in its dey-to-day monitaring
activitias,

254 DERWATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives are entered into in the hormal ¢eurse of businase and no material fosses are anticipated other than those which

have been accountad forin profit or loss, Alf commitments or contingent commilments under derivative Tinancial Instruments
are seifled in cash,

Notional Principal

Rapresenis the gross notional value of all outstanding contracts as at year-snd. The gross nofional value is the sum of the
absolute velue of alt purchases and sales of derivetive instruments, This velue will not affect the amount receivabla of
payable under a derivative coniratl due to the cash-seltted nature of the various contracts. The gross notional value
represents only the measure of involvernent by the Company in derivative contracts and not ks expostire to market or credit
riake arising from such contracts.

Interest Rate Swape
Interest rate swaps ane used to hedge tha Company's exposure to changes in the fair values of its noles and certain loans

and advances stirbutable o changes in market interest rates. Intarest rate swaps are matched to specific issuance of notes
orloans and advances.
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26.2 MARKET RISKS

The fables summarise tha Group’s exposure to intereat rate risk through cafegorisation of assets and Nebilities into tine
buckets, determined as being the earier of the contractual re-pricing dste of maturity.

oy - q .

2018

ASSETS

MNon-trading portiolios
Cash and cash aquivalents
Loans and advances
Total assets

Llabllities :
Non-trading portiollos
Debt securlties Issued
Long-term loans

Total Liabiiitios

Net Pricing Gap

Cumylative Repricing Ga

A 200 basis point intsrest rate change
wii have the following effeston
profitfoss:

200 bp parafiel shock interest rete
increass

200 bp pareilsl shack interest rate
decrease
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25.2 MARKET RISK continued
Upto 13 412 1.5
1 month months months years Total
R'000 R'000 R'COD R'000 RU00
2018
ASSETS
Non-trading portiolios
Cash and aash equivalants 489 858 - - - 489 668
_loans and advances 3 291 605 3 632 43 902 151074 3480113
Totel assots 3761 263 3532 43 902 151074 3968 771
Liab#litlas
Non-trading portiollos
Debt securities issued - 378 085 - - 378 085
Long-term loang - 3115432 . - 3118432
Total Liabllities = 3 403 B17- n « 3493 517
Nat Pricing Gap 3 761 263 {3 489 935) 43 802 181 074 466 258
Cumulative Repricing Gap 3 761 263 271 279 318 181 486 265 468 265
A 200 basis point interest rate change
will have the following effecton
profithoss:
200 bp parallel thock inferest rate
increass 6301 956 4305 22 961 34 623
200 by parafiel shock Interast rate
decrease {1 625) 8 586 38 637 208 057 251 761
253 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Within 1year NetFalrValuo * oo o Negathwe fair :r‘;:;‘;;
R'oc R'000 R'000 R'DO0 R'0G0

2019

Infarest rate swaps

‘Total Derlvativas

2018

Exchange rate confracte - - B - -

Interes! rate swaps 1739 1739 1739 - 16869 203

Tetal Derlvatives 1739 1738 1739 - 1 869 203
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28. Financlal Risk Management
Capital management

‘The Company manages its capital to schisve a prudent balance between maintaining appropriate oapital levals to support
business growth and to provide siakeholders with retums on & sustainable basis,

The management of company's capital is govemed by the Transactional Documents. The Gempany's Dividend policy governs
the distribulion of excess reserves.

The company's primary objectives when managing cepilal are to safeguard the company’s abfity to continug as a going
concern. As the company is a controlled structured entity, the company's sources of additional capital and policles for
distribution of excess capital may also be influenced by the company'’s capital management objective. The company is not
subject 1o any externally imposed capital requiremants,

The company defines "capital® as including all components of eqully plus loans from companies with no fixed ferms of
repayment, lsas unaccrued proposed dividends. Trading balances thal arise as a result of trading transactions with ather
company companies are not regarded by the compsny as capltal. On this basis the amount of capltal employed at 30 June is
as follows:

2018 2018

R000 RI000
Share capital 100 100
Total raserves 160 588 167 880
Lean from Hollard Insurance Company Limiled 5 500 § 500
Loan from Sasfin Privaie Equity inveatment Holdings - & 750
198 168 212 230
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Priority of Payment The order In which payments will be made 1o the company's creditors
and the holders of debt securities

Series guarantee Serles guarantee is the written deed executed by Serles Securlty SPV Incorporsted
In favour of Serles Sesured Credilors

Serles Indemnity This is the written agreement entered betwesn the issver and the Serles Security SPV
incorporated i

Saries 1ssusr South African Securitisetion Prograrme (RF} Limited

Series Securad Creditors Creditors of the issuar as set out in the Priority of Payiments that are parly fo
Serles Transacon Agreament

Series Seourily SPV Segurity SPV Propristy Limited is the SPY Incorperated in respect of SASP for
the benafit of the noteholders

8s 174 N Agreamsn Agreamsnts entered between, among others, the [sster and one or mors parties







